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DECLARATION OF CONSOLIDATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT S OF AFFILIATES

The companies required to be included in the cadfest@d financial statements of affiliates in aceorce

with the “Criteria Governing Preparation of Affitian Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and
Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated éfptises” for the year ended December 31, 2017 are
all the same as the companies required to be iedlird the consolidated financial statements of rgare
and subsidiary companies as provided in Internatiéiinancial Reporting Standard 10 “Consolidated
Financial Statements.” Relevant information thbwdd be disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements of affiliates has all been disclosedha consolidated financial statements of parent and
subsidiary companies. Hence, we have not prepmisaparate set of consolidated financial statements
of affiliates.

Very truly yours,
PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP.

By

KHEIN SENG PUA
Chairman

March 16, 2018



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Phison Electronics Corp.

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Phigewctronics Corp. (the “Corporation”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) which coriges the consolidated balance sheets as of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the consolidatéehstnts of comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows for the years then ended the notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant aotiong policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated foanstatements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position ef @roup as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and
its consolidated financial performance and its otidated cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Pagipa of Financial Reports by Securities
Issuers and International Financial Reporting Saagsl (IFRS), International Accounting
Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), é88I€ Interpretations (SIC) endorsed and issued
into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commissifithe Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Régaus Governing Auditing and Attestation
of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accams$ and auditing standards generally accepted
in the Republic of China. Our responsibilities anthose standards are further described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Gsnlidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in acecm@avith The Norm of Professional Ethics for
Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of Chjrand we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirgme We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to pl@wa basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in oofegsional judgment, were of most significance in

our audit of the consolidated financial statemdatghe year ended December 31, 2017. These
matters were addressed in the context of our aidihe consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and veerbt provide a separate opinion on these
matters.



Key audit matters for the Group’s consolidated itial statements for the year 2017 are stated as
follows:

Sales Revenue Recognition

The operating revenue, in New Taiwan dollars (“NJT®f the Group amounted to NT$41,864,759
thousand. Sales failing to fulfill the criteriarfoevenue recognition may result in a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial staets. Therefore, the recognition on sales
revenue has been identified as a key audit matter.

For the audit procedures performed in responseisanatter, including follow:

1. Understood and tested the process of the desigrimplementation of relevant controls over
recognition on sales revenue.

2. Sampled the original sales orders, shipping ohgeus, export declarations and examined the
process for the payments receiving to confirm thatsales revenue have met the conditions of
revenue recognition.

3. Checked if there were any instances of simuttasgurchases from and sales to the same
entity. If such situations presented, we furthesessed the background of the entity and the
goods purchased and sold in order to evaluategagonableness of the transactions and to
confirm whether there were instances of repeatechpises and sales.

4. Sent out confirmation letter to top ten custanier order to verify the occurrence of sales
revenue.

Impairment on Inventories

The Group actively stocked up on inventory in 2@ddrder to cope with the foreseen shortage
since it is expected that raw material would bertsho supply. The management measured
inventories at the lower of cost and net realizalddue, which is primarily based on the
management’s estimation. Since whether the progilicbe unsaleable or obsolete is subject to
the boom and innovation of industrial technologgpairment on inventories has been identified as
a key audit matter. Refer to Note 5 and 10 toattmmpanying consolidated financial statements
for further information.

Our main audit procedures performed in respongi@ganatter, included the following:

1. Understood and tested the inventory impairmessessment and the design and
implementation of relevant internal controls.

2. Understood the assumption that the managemeut fas the estimation of impairment on
inventories and evaluated the reasonableness af¢tigodology.

3. Obtained the lower of inventory cost and netlizable value assessment data which is
prepared by the management and verified the agiofijepin order to evaluate whether it is
consistent with the allowance for obsolete inventorChecked whether the forecasted pricing
data is consistent with the most recent sales datasted the accuracy of the allowance for
inventory valuation and obsolescence loss by rataion using the aforementioned
assumption for inventory impairment estimation #mel assessment data of the lower of cost
and net realizable value.

4. Participated in year-end inventory count in otdeassess the appropriateness of the allowance
for inventory valuation and obsolescence loss.
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Matter of Emphasis

As stated in Note 34 to the accompanying consailéinancial statements, the Corporation has
been under statutory investigation since Augus2(,6 for an alleged violation of the Securities
and Exchange Act, and the investigation was comdudty the Taiwan Hsinchu District
Prosecutorial Office and concluded on August 311720 According to the press release
announcement from the Taiwan Hsinchu District Peoggial Office on September 1, 2017, under
the Securities and Exchange Act and related panssiin the Criminal Code, the prosecutor
charged the chairman of the Corporation, Mr. Kheeng Pua, and others culminating in either
deferred prosecution or dropping the claim forHartprosecution. The Taiwan Hsinchu District
Prosecutorial Office ex officio sent the ruling tbe Taiwan High Prosecutors Office for
reconsideration. As of November 18, 2017, in rdgty the partial revocation and partial
dismissal charge by the Taiwan High Court Prose@mlt®ffice against the chairman of the
Corporation, Mr. Khein Seng Pua, and others, thee éa under re-investigation. As such, our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Matter

We have also audited the parent company only fiahstatements of Phison Electronics Corp. as
of and for the years ended December 31, 2017 ahfi 80 which we have issued an unmodified
opinion with emphasised matters.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged thi Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation aidpfesentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Regulations @owgrthe Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers and International Financial Répp Standards (IFRS), International
Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretation$RIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC)
endorsed and issued into effect by the FinancipeBusory Commission of the Republic of China,
and for such internal control as management debesnis necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are fremn fneaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statememanagement is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concerncldising, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of attmumnless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, omnba®alistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including the supars, are responsible for overseeing the
Group'’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assuraboetavhether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material nésatnt, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinioReasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audiuctad in accordance with the auditing standards
generally accepted in the Republic of China wiWa}s detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud orreanal are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expdot@tfluence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated finastaa¢ments.



As part of an audit in accordance with the audistapdards generally accepted in the Republic of
China, we exercise professional judgment and maimeofessional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

1.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstant of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perfouditgprocedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient andrapriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatemestiting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusioforgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internaktmdn

Obtain an understanding of internal control vafg to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstarimg not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s inteowatrol.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accountingipsligsed and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by managemen

Conclude on the appropriateness of managemersts of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence oltaimeether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast Bggmt doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude thahaerial uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ reporthe related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures amd@guate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obitaipeto the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may causeGheup to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structurecmient of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the conatdidl financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manneratttaeves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evideragarding the financial information of entities
or business activities within the Group to exprassopinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direciapervision, and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our aoginion.

We communicate with those charged with governaagarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant afididings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our dud

We also provide those charged with governance witstatement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding indeperglerand to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasortablthought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.



From the matters communicated with those chargeéld gavernance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of tmmsolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2016 and are therefore the udiy matters. We describe these matters in
our auditors’ report unless law or regulation pueels public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine @hatatter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doimguid reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resultingignimdependent auditors’ report are Hsin Wei
Tai and Yu-Wei Fan.

Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

March 16, 2018

Notice to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statemargsntended only to present the consolidated
financial positionfinancial performance and cash flows in accordandth accounting principles
and practices generally accepted in the RepubliCluha and not those of any other jurisdictions.
The standards, procedures and practices to audih @wnsolidated financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republicluh€.

For the convenience of readers, the independentit@st report and the accompanying

consolidated financial statements have been traedlénto English from the original Chinese
version prepared and used in the Republic of Chin&there is any conflict between the English
version and the original Chinese version or anyedénce in the interpretation of the two versions,
the Chinese-language auditors’ report and consaéddinancial statements shall prevail.



PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4 and 6)
Financial assets at fair value through profit @sle current (Notes 4, 7 and 28)
Debt investments with no active market - currenit@ 4, 8 and 31)
Notes and accounts receivable
Third parties (Notes 4 and 9)
Related parties (Notes 4, 9 and 29)
Other receivables (Note 9)
Current tax assets (Notes 4 and 22)
Inventories (Notes 4 and 10)
Prepayments
Other current assets

Total current assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Available-for-sale financial assets - non-curréiotes 4 and 11)
Financial assets measured at cost - non-curreriegNband 12)
Investments accounted for by the equity methodébldtand 14)
Property, plant and equipment (Notes 4 and 15)
Intangible assets (Notes 4 and 16)
Deferred tax assets (Notes 4 and 22)
Guarantee deposits paid

Total non-current assets

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term borrowings (Note 17)
Notes and accounts payable

Third parties

Related parties (Note 29)
Other payables (Note 18)
Tax payable (Notes 4 and 22)
Provisions (Notes 4 and 19)
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 22)
Long-Term Deferred Revenue
Net defined benefit liabilities - non-current (Nst# and 20)
Guarantee deposits received

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE CORPORATION (e 21)
Share capital
Common shares
Capital surplus
Retained earnings
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Unappropriated earnings
Total retained earnings
Other equity

Total equity attributable to owners of the Corpimnat
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Total equity

TOTAL

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdnsolidated financial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touche auditors’ report dated Miart6, 2018)

2017 2016

Amount % Amount %
$ 14,142,389 40 $ 14,958,331 47
1,271,217 4 1,227,729 4
80,534 - 58,729 -
5,413,304 15 4,442,409 14
318,151 1 358,250 1
288,599 1 389,357 1
9,237 - 1,866 -
7,192,346 21 5,222,336 17
28,720 - 68,115 -
65,190 - 28,222 -
28,809,687 82 26,755,344 84
434,763 1 372,051 1
817,627 2 712,890 2
1,709,711 5 1,256,620 4
2,822,881 8 2,426,451 7
218,130 1 222,297 1
310,025 1 218,661 1
3,780 - 11,325 -
6,316,917 8 5,220,295 16
$ 35,126,604 100 $ 31,975,639 100
$ - - $ 580,500 2
1,086,707 3 1,737,560 5
2,560,538 7 2,119,391 7
3,736,777 11 3,152,524 10
1,092,802 3 732,348 2
292,081 1 344,076 1
194,503 1 237,661 1
8,963,408 26 8,904,060 28
- - 315 -
19,710 - - -
84,897 - 72,725 -
274 - 314 -
104,881 - 73,354 -
9,068,289 26 8,977,414 8
1,970,740 6 1,970,740 6
6,660,502 19 6,652,449 21
2,842,806 8 2,356,107 8
25,965 - 111,358 -
14,521,886 41 11,928,136 37
17,390,657 49 14,395,601 45
__ 36416 - 25,965) _ -
26,058,315 74 22,992,825 72
- - 5,400 -
26,058,315 4 22,998,225 2
$ 35,126,604 100 $ 31,975,639 100



PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)

OPERATING REVENUE (Notes 4 and 29)
Gross sales
Less: Sales returns and allowances
Net sales
Other operating revenue

Total operating revenue
OPERATING COSTS (Notes 4, 10, 23 and 29)
GROSS PROFIT

OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 23 and 29)
Marketing
General and administrative
Research and development

Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES
Other gains and losses (Note 23)
Share of gains of associates (Note 14)
Other income (Note 23)
Financial costs

Total nonoperating income and expenses
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 4 and 22)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) FOR
THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME TAX
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan
Income tax benefit relating to items that will not
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
(Note 22)

2017 2016

Amount % Amount %
$ 42,115,942 101 $ 44,270,298 101
425,229 1 588,015 1
41,690,713 100 43,682,283 100
174,046 - 100,229 -
41,864,759 100 43,782,512 100
30,365,137 73 34,518,774 79
11,499,622 27 9,263,738 21
531,728 1 684,999 2
522,373 1 517,908 1
3,713,829 9 3,218,183 7
4,767,930 11 4,421,090 10
6,731,692 16 4,842,648 11
(571,886) Q) 16,158 -
442 368 1 459,309 1
120,677 - 160,864 1
(4,981) - (2,053) -
(13,822) - 634,278 2
6,717,870 16 5,476,926 13
956,580 2 675,083 2
5,761,290 14 4,801,843 11
(8,288) - (2,475) -
1,408 - 421 -

(Continued)



PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)

2017 2016
Amount % Amount %
Items that may be reclassified subsequently tatprof
or loss:
Exchange differences on translating foreign
operations $ 1,516 - $ (48,919) -
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale financial
assets 62,712 - 125,601 -
Income tax benefit relating to items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
(Note 22) 61 - 8,235 -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net
of income tax 57,409 - 82,863 -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
YEAR $ 5,818,699 14 $ 4,884,706 1
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTED TO:
Owners of the Corporation $ 5,760,972 14 $ 4,866,992 11
Non-controlling interests 318 - (65,149) -
$ 5,761,290 4 $ 4,801,843 1
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
ATTRIBUTED TO:
Owners of the Corporation $ 5,816,473 14 $ 4,950,331 11

Non-controlling interests 2,226 - (65,625)

$ 5,818,699 14 $ 4,884,706 11

EARNINGS PER SHARE; NEW TAIWAN
DOLLARS (Note 24)

Basic $ 29.23 $ 24.67
Diluted $ 28.83 $ 24.35

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdmsolidated financial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touche auditors’ report dated Mart6, 2018) (Concluded)



PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Equity Attributable to the Corporation

Other Equity
Exchange Unrealized Gain
Differences on (Loss) on
Retained Earnings Translating Available-for-
Unappropriated Foreign sale Financial Non-controlling
Common Shares  Capital Surplus Legal Reservt Special Reserv Earnings Operations Asset: Treasury Shares Total Interests Total Equity
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2016 (AUDITED AFTER

RESTATED, $ 1,973,74 $ 6,514,56! $ 1,956,10 $ 5,05¢ $ 9,990,21 $ (26,609 $ (84,750 $ - $20,328,32 $ 221,530 $ 20,549,86
Appropriation of the 2015 earnings

Legal reserv - - 400,00: - (400,00) - - - - - -

Special resen - - - 106,30: (106,307 - - - - - -

Cash dividends - NT$12 per share - - - - (2,368,488) - - - (2,368,488) - (2,368,488)
Non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 4,577 4,577
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (7,710) (7,710)
Actual disposal or acquisition of interests in sdizsies - 147,375 - - - - - - 147,375 (147,375) -
Treasury shares - - - - - - - (64,722) (64,722) - (64,722)
Cancelation of treasury shares (3,000) (9,495) - - (52,227) - - 64,722 - - -
Net profit (loss) for the year ended December B1LE - - - - 4,866,99 - - - 4,866,99 (65,149 4,801,84
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year @éiErember 31,

2016, net of income t: - - - - (2,059 (40,209) 125,60: - 83,33¢ (47€) 82,86:
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2016 1,970,740 6,652,449 2,356,107 111,358 11,928,136 (66,816) 40,851 - 22,992,825 5,400 22,998,225
Appropriation of the 2016 earnir

Legal reserve - - 486,699 - (486,699) - - - - - -

Reversal from special reserve - - - (85,393) 85,393 - - - - - -

Cash dividends - NT$14 per share - - - - (2,759,036) - - - (2,759,036) - (2,759,036)
Changes in capital surplus from investments in@ates and joint

ventures accounted for using the equity method - 10,739 - - - - - - 10,739 - 10,739
Actual disposal or acquisition of interests in sdizsies - (2,686) - - - - - - (2,686) - (2,686)
Non-controlling interest - - - - - - - - - (7,626 (7,626
Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2017 - - - - 5,760,972 - - - 5,760,972 318 5,761,290
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year @éiErember 31,

2017, net of income tax - - - - (6.880) (331) 62,712 - 55,501 1,908 57,409
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 201 $ 197074 $ 6.660,50 $ 2.842.80 $ 25,96! $14,521,88 $  (67.14) $ 103,56 $ - $ 26.058,31 $ - $ 26,058,31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢ineolidated financial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touche auditors’ report dated Mart6, 2018)
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PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Share of gains of associates
Net losses (gains) on foreign currency exchange
Recognition of provisions
Impairment loss recognized on financial assets
Depreciation
Amortization
Interest income
Dividend income
Allowance for bad debts
Inventory write-downs

Gains on disposal of financial assets measuredsat c

Financial costs

Other non-cash items

Gains on deconsolidation of subsidiaries
Impairment loss recognized on Intangible assets
Gains on sale of property, plant and equipment

Net changes related to operating assets and fiabili

Financial assets held for trading

Notes and accounts receivable

Other receivables

Inventories

Prepayments

Other current assets

Notes and accounts payable

Other payables

Provisions

Unearned Revenue

Other current liabilities

Net defined benefit liability
Cash generated from operations
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Purchase of financial assets measured at cost
Payments for intangible assets

(Purchase) disposal of financial assets desigrastexd fair value

through profit or loss
Interest received

-11 -

2017 201¢€
$ 6,717,870 $ 5,476,926
(442,368) (459,309)
369,978 (27,876)
238,449 408,268
169,512 112,475
169,364 123,689
166,091 122,584
(42,511) (35,189)
(29,947) (40,825)
22,958 123,552
19,361 8,649
(7,545) -
4,981 2,053
1,163 -
- (45,649)
- 23,640
- (41)
4,585 (3,972)
(1,005,072) (425,880)
98,188 (1,228)
(1,989,417) 19,320
38,239 (11,456)
(36,968) 10,125
(185,891) (420,224)
594,250 837,677
(290,444) (214,044)
19,710 -
(44,250) 29,768
12,172 5,824
4,572,458 5,618,857
(5,385) (1,709)
(694,831) (664,846)
3,872,242 4,952,302
(565,320) (913,778)
(281,538) (220,146)
(161,956) (177,408)
(47,635) 1,001,740
41,876 34,979
(Continued)



PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Dividends received

Increase in debt investments with no active market

Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits

Proceeds from sale of financial assets measureasat

Proceeds of the capital reduction of availablesi@le financial assets
Purchase of investments accounted for by the equétyrod

Net cash outflow from deconsolidation of subsidiari

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and egaig

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash dividends paid
(Decrease) increase in short-term borrowings
(Decrease) increase in non-controlling interests
(Decrease) increase in guarantee deposits
Purchase of treasury shares

Net cash used in financing activities

EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON THE BALANCE
OF CASH HELD IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE
YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdinsolidated financial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touche auditors’ report dated Mart6, 2018)

-12 -

2017 201¢€
29,947 40,825
(21,805) (38,321)
7,545 (8,386)
14,315 -
- 49,500
- (31,771)
- (25,297)
- 41
(984,571) (288,022)
(2,759,036) (2,368,488)
(580,500) 380,386
(10,312) 4,577
(40) 60
- (64,722)
(3,349,888) (2,048,187)
(353,725) (63,358)
(815,942) 2,552,735
14,958,331 12,405,596
$ 14,142,389 $ 14,958,331
(Concluded)



PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless StateQtherwise)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Phison Electronics Corp. (the “Corporation”) wasadrporated on November 8, 2000 under the Company
Act of the Republic of China (ROC). The Corporatimainly designs and sells flash memory controllers
and peripheral system applications.

The Corporation’s shares have been traded on tipeiTaxchange (for over-the-counter trading in Taiyv
since December 6, 2004.

The consolidated financial statements of the Cafpam and its subsidiaries, hereto forth colledjive
referred to as the “Group”, are presented in thgp@uation’s functional currency, the New Taiwanldol

2. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approyetthe Corporation’s board of directors on Maréh 1
2018.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW, AMENDED AND REVISED STANDAR DS AND INTERPRETATIONS

a. Initial application of the amendments to the ltations Governing the Preparation of Financial ¢rep
by Securities Issuers and the International Firsn&eporting Standards (IFRS), International
Accounting Standards (IAS), Interpretations of IFRERIC), and Interpretations of IAS (SIC)
(collectively, the “IFRSs”) endorsed and issue ieffect by the FSC

Except for the following, whenever applied, thetiali application of the amendments to the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of FinanBlaports by Securities Issuers and the IFRSs
endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC wouldhaee any material impact on the Group’s
accounting policies:

Amendments to the Regulations Governing the Préparaf Financial Reports by Securities Issuers

The amendments include additions of several acowyritems and requirements for disclosures of
impairment of non-financial assets as a consequefite IFRSs endorsed and issued into effect by th
FSC. In addition, as a result of the post impletaon review of IFRSs in Taiwan, the amendments
also include an emphasis on certain recognitionra@dsurement considerations and add requirements
for disclosures of related party transactions astgyill.

The amendments stipulate that other companiesstitutions of which the chairman of the board of
directors or president serves as the chairmaneobtfard of directors or the president of the Graup,

is the spouse or second immediate family of therctzan of the board of directors or president of the
Group are deemed to have a substantive relateg rgdationship, unless it can be demonstratedrtbat
control, joint control, or significant influence ists. Furthermore, the amendments require the
disclosure of the names of the related partiestlamdelationships with whom the Group has significa
transactions. If the transactions or balance wisipecific related party is 10% or more of the @isu
respective total transactions or balance, suclsaciions should be separately disclosed by the whme
each related party.
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The amendments also require additional disclogureere is a significant difference between theialkct
operations after a business combination and theateg benefits on the acquisition date.

When the amendments are applied retrospectivety fanuary 1, 2017, the disclosures of related party
transactions are enhanced. Refer to Note 29 fateckdisclosures.

The Regulations Governing the Preparation ofafdral Reports by Securities Issuers and the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFR8)ternational Accounting Standards (IAS),
Interpretations of IFRS (IFRIC), and Interpretaiasf IAS (SIC) (collectively, the “IFRSs”) endorsed
by the FSC for application starting from 2018

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretatius Effective Date
(“New IFRSs") Announced by IASB (Note 1)
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle Note 2
Amendment to IFRS 2 “Classification and Measurenaént January 1, 2018

Share-based Payment Transactions”

Amendments to IFRS 4 “Applying IFRS 9 Financialttnsnents with January 1, 2018
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts”

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and related amendmen January 1, 2018

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 “Mandatory Effexdate of January 1, 2018
IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures”

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” January 1, 2018

Amendments to IFRS 15 “Clarifications to IFRS 15/&sue from January 1, 2018
Contracts with Customers”

Amendment to IAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative” January 1, 2017

Amendments to IAS 12 “Recognition of Deferred TassAts for January 1, 2017
Unrealized Losses”

Amendments to IAS 40 “Transfers of Investment Priyfe January 1, 2018

IFRIC 22 “Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance January 1, 2018

Consideration”

Note 1: Unless stated otherwise, the above New $F&8 effective for annual periods beginning on
or after their respective effective dates.

Note 2: The amendment to IFRS 12 is retrospectigpplied for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2017; the amendment to IAS 28 is retisgely applied for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018.

1) IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and related anmeeadt

Classification, measurement and impairment of fomrassets

With regard to financial assets, all recognizedricial assets that are within the scope of IAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurefhare subsequently measured at amortized
cost or fair value. Under IFRS 9, the requirenfenthe classification of financial assets is date
below.

For the Group’s debt instruments that have coniedctash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount tautding, their classification and measurement are
as follows:

a) For debt instruments, if they are held withitbwsiness model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows, the financial assets arasored at amortized cost and are assessed for
impairment continuously with impairment loss reciagd in profit or loss, if any. Interest
revenue is recognized in profit or loss by usirg dffective interest method;
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b) For debt instruments, if they are held withibusiness model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash flows amel $ale of financial assets, the financial assets
are measured at fair value through other compréleimscome (FVTOCI) and are assessed for
impairment. Interest revenue is recognized inipraf loss by using the effective interest
method, and other gains or losses shall be recediiizother comprehensive income, except for
impairment gains or losses and foreign exchangesgaid losses. When the debt instruments
are derecognized or reclassified, the cumulativasgar losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified from eqoityrofit or loss.

Except for above, all other financial assets areasueed at fair value through profit or loss.
However, the Group may make an irrevocable elediiopresent subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held tfrading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognized in profit loss. No subsequent impairment
assessment is required, and the cumulative gainloss previously recognized in other
comprehensive income cannot be reclassified fromityetp profit or loss.

The Group analyzed the facts and circumstancets dinancial assets that exist at December 31,
2017 and performed the assessment of the impdERS 9 on the classification and measurement
of financial assets as follows:

a) Listed shares, emerging market shares, andethlghares classified as available-for-sale will
be classified as at fair value through profit @do

Besides those, unlisted shares measured at costewieasured at fair value instead.

b) Debt investments classified as debt investmevith no active market and measured at
amortized cost will be classified as measured airiped cost under IFRS 9 because, on initial
recognition, the contractual cash flows that alelggayments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding and these investments am \within a business model whose objective is
to collect contractual cash flows.

IFRS 9 requires that impairment loss on financéaleds is recognized by using the “Expected Credit
Losses Model”. The loss allowance is requiredfiioancial assets measured at amortized cost,
investments in debt instruments measured at FVT@@ke receivables, contract assets arising
from IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Custorhecertain written loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts. A loss allowanedie 12-month expected credit losses is required
for a financial asset if its credit risk has natreased significantly since its initial recognitionA
loss allowance for full lifetime expected credis$es is required for a financial asset if its d¢ragk

has increased significantly since its initial reaitign and is not low. However, a loss allowance
for full lifetime expected credit losses is reqdiror trade receivables that do not constitute a
financing transaction.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired finah@ssets, the Group takes into account the
expected credit losses on initial recognition itcekating the credit-adjusted effective interegera
Subsequently, any changes in expected losses amgnieed as a loss allowance with a
corresponding gain or loss recognized in profiioss.

The Group has performed an assessment that thepGrviduapply the simplified approach to
recognize lifetime expected credit losses for tnadeivables, contract assets and lease receivables
In relation to the debt instrument investments @nedfinancial guarantee contracts, the Group will
assess whether there has been a significant igcieathe credit risk to determine whether to
recognize 12-month or lifetime expected credit ésss In general, the Group anticipates that the
application of the expected credit loss model &39O will result in earlier recognition of credit
losses for financial assets.
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2)

The Group elects not to restate prior periods wdgplying the requirements for the classification,
measurement and impairment of financial assetsrud®S 9 with the cumulative effect of the
initial application recognized at the date of @itapplication and will provide the disclosures
related to the classification and the adjustmefoirmation upon initial application of IFRS 9.

The anticipated impact on assets, liabilities ampliitg of retrospective application of the
requirements for the classification, measuremedtieapairment of financial assets as of January 1,
2018 is set out below:

Carrying Adjustments Adjusted
Amount as of Arising from Carrying
December 31, Initial Amount as of
2017 Application January 1, 2018
Impact on assets, liabilities and equity
Current assets
Financial assets measured at amortized
cost $ $ 80,534 $ 80,534

Debt investments with no active market 80,534 (80,534) -

Non- current assets

Financial assets at fair valugaligh othe
comprehensive income - 860,915 860,915
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss - 434,763 434,763
Financial assets measured at cost 817,627 (817,627) -
Available-for-sale financial assets 434,763 (434,763) -
Total effect on assets $ 1332924 $ 43,288 $ 1,376,212
Equity
Retained earnings $ 14521886 $ 543,867 $ 15,065,753
Other equity 36,416 (500,579) (464,163)
Total effect on equity $ 14,558,302 $ 43,288 $ 14,601,590

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customears related amendments

IFRS 15 establishes principles for recognizing nesethat apply to all contracts with customers,
and will supersede IAS 18 “Revenue”, IAS 11 “Constion Contracts” and a number of
revenue-related interpretations.

When applying IFRS 15, the Group recognizes revéyumpplying the following steps:

Identify the contract with the customer;

Identify the performance obligations in the coatra

Determine the transaction price;

Allocate the transaction price to the performaoiskgations in the contract; and
Recognize revenue when the Group satisfies anpeaftce obligation.

The Group elects to retrospectively apply IFRS d8dntracts that are not complete on January 1,
2018 and recognize the cumulative effect of thenghan retained earnings on January 1, 2018.
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The anticipated impact on assets, liabilities aquitg when retrospectively applying IFRS 15 as of
January 1, 2018 is detailed below:

Carrying Adjustments Adjusted
Amount as of Arising from Carrying
December 31, Initial Amount as of
2017 Application January 1, 2018
Impact on assets, liabilities and equity
Current Liabilities
Provisions - current $ 292,081 $ (292,081) $ -
Refund liability - 292,081 292,081
Total effect on liabilities $ 292,081 $ - $ 292,081

Except for the above impact, as of the date thesa@atated financial statements were authorized for
issue, the Corporation assessed the possible intpattthe application of other standards and
interpretations will not have a material impact the Corporation’s financial position and financial

performance.

The IFRSs in issue but not yet endorsed anedsiuto effect by the FSC

Effective Date

New IFRSs Announced by IASB (Note 1)
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle January 1, 2019
Amendments to IFRS 9 “Prepayment Features with filega January 1, 2019 (Note 2)

Compensation”
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contrdsudf Assets To be determined by IASB
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint efit

IFRS 16 “Leases” January 1, 2019 (Note 3)

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2021

Amendments to IAS 19 “Plan Amendment, Curtailment o January 1, 2019 (Note 4)
Settlement”

Amendments to IAS 28 “Long-term Interests in Asate$ and Joint January 1, 2019
Ventures”
IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty Over Income Tax Treatments” January 1, 2019

Note 1. Unless stated otherwise, the above New $F&€ effective for annual periods beginning on
or after their respective effective dates.

Note 2: The FSC permits the election for early agidopof the amendments starting from 2018.

Note 3: On December 19, 2017, the FSC announcadIBHRS 16 will take effect starting from
January 1, 2019.

Note 4: The Group shall apply these amendmentdaio mendments, curtailments or settlements
occurring on or after January 1, 2019.

IFRS 16 “Leases”

IFRS 16 sets out the accounting standards for dethse will supersede IAS 17 and a number of rdlate
interpretations.

-17 -



Under IFRS 16, if the Group is a lessee, it slabgnize right-of-use assets and lease liabiliGesill
leases on the consolidated balance sheets exadptvwalue and short-term leases. The Group may
elect to apply the accounting method similar todbeounting for operating leases under IAS 17 ¢o th
low-value and short-term leases. On the cons@dlatatements of comprehensive income, the Group
should present the depreciation expense chargeabeoright-of-use asset separately from the interest
expense accrued on the lease liability; interesbimputed by using the effective interest metha@n

the consolidated statements of cash flows, casm@aig for the principal portion of the lease lidil

are classified within financing activities; cashypeents for the interest portion are classified imith
operating activities.

The application of IFRS 16 is not expected to haweaterial impact on the accounting of the Group as
lessor.

When IFRS 16 becomes effective, the Group may éteapply this standard either retrospectively to
each prior reporting period presented or retrospagt with the cumulative effect of the initial
application of this standard recognized at the dhtwritial application.
Except for the above impact, as of the date thesaatated financial statements were authorized for
issue, the Group is continuously assessing theilpesmpact that the application of other standards
and interpretations will have on the Group’s finahgosition and financial performance and will
disclose the relevant impact when the assessmeatripleted.
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have beegpaped in accordance with the Regulations Governing

the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securiiesers and IFRSs as endorsed and issued intd bffec

the FSC.

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have begmaped on the historical cost basis, except fomionel
instruments that are measured at fair values.

The fair value measurements are grouped into Lelvdts 3 based on the degree to which the fair value
measurement inputs are observable and based orsighdicance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety. These levels areribestas follows:

a. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjustedytive markets for identical assets or liabilities

b. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quotedegrincluded within Level 1 that are observabletfar
asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as psg®r indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and

c. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for gwetor liability.
Classification of Current and Non-current Assets ad Liabilities
Current assets include:

a. Assets held primarily for the purpose of traging

b. Assets expected to be realized within 12 moattes the reporting period; and
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c. Cash and equivalents, unless the asset isctestfrom being exchanged or used to settle dityalbor
at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Current liabilities include:
a. Liabilities held primarily for the purpose oadling;
b. Liabilities due to be settled within 12 montfieathe reporting period; and

c. Liabilities for which the Group does not haveumrtonditional right to defer settlement for atsted2
months after the reporting period.

All other assets and liabilities are classifiedhans-current.
Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporhee financial statements of the Corporation and the
entities controlled by the Corporation. Income angenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the period are included in the consolidagtatement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition upthe effective date of disposal, as appropriate.helV
necessary, adjustments are made to the finanatehsénts of subsidiaries to bring their accounpiolicies

into line with those used by the Corporation. iAtla-group transactions, balances, income andresqse
are eliminated in full upon consolidation. Totahtprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributethé
owners of the Corporation and to the non-contrgllinterests even if this results in the non-cotitrgl
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in sidoges that do not result in the Group losing oaint
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equatysactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests aresidp to reflect the changes in their relativerggts in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amounivbich the non-controlling interests are adjusted a
the fair value of the consideration paid or receii® recognized directly in equity and attributedthe
owners of the Corporation.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, thiterénce between the following is recognized in
disposal gains and losses: (1) the total amouthiefair value of the consideration received dredfair
value of the remaining investment in the formersidiary on the date control was lost, and (2) ttalt
amount of assets, including goodwill, and liakaltifrom former subsidiaries, and the carrying arhadin
non-controlling interests on the date control wast.I The basis of compliance should be the same
between the accounting for all the amounts receghim other comprehensive income related to a
subsidiary and the accounting for the related assad liabilities disposed of directly by the Group

The remaining investments in a former subsidiaryeognized as the original investment amount é th
associate according to the fair value on the da¢ral was lost.

See Note 13 and Tables 6 and 7 following the Nate€onsolidated Financial Statements for detailed
information on subsidiaries (including the percgstaf ownership and main businesses).

Foreign Currencies

In preparing the Group’s consolidated financiatesteents of each individual group entity, transatgion
currencies other than a Group entity’s functionatency (foreign currencies) are recognized atabes of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transaztion

At the end of each reporting period, monetary itel@sominated in foreign currencies are retranslated

the rates prevailing at that date. Exchange diffees on monetary items arising from settlement or
translation are recognized in profit or loss in pleeiod in which they arise.

-19 -



Non-monetary items measured at fair value thatdereminated in foreign currencies are retranslated
the rates prevailing at the date when the fairevabas determined. Exchange differences arising fre
retranslation of non-monetary items are includedpiafit or loss for the period except for exchange
differences arising from the retranslation of noontary items in respect of which gains and losses
recognized directly in other comprehensive incoarg in which case, the exchange differences ace als
recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured at histocimstl in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated finanstatements, the functional currencies of the
Corporation and the Group entities (including sdiasies in other countries that use currency diffier
from the currency of the Corporation) are translatgo the presentation currency - the New Taiwalhad

as follows: Assets and liabilities are translaéthe exchange rates prevailing at the end ofgperting
period; and income and expense items are transtdtéiie average exchange rates for the period. The
resulting currency translation differences are gaized in other comprehensive income (attributethéo
owners of the Corporation and non-controlling iets as appropriate).

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsididrgttdoes not result in the Corporation losing adraver the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulatedhange differences is re-attributed to hon-cdiivigp
interests of the subsidiary and is not recognizegrofit or loss. For all other partial disposailse
proportionate share of the accumulated exchanderelifces recognized in other comprehensive incame i
reclassified to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories consist of raw materials, semifinisipeoducts, work-in-process and finished goods, whieh
stated at the lower of cost or net realizable valuaventory write-downs are made by item, excepéne

it may be appropriate to group similar or relateuiis. The net realizable value is the estimatéithge
price of inventories less all estimated costs omgletion and costs necessary to make the sale.
Inventories are recorded at their weighted-avecagts on the balance sheet date.

Investment in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Groupdigsificant influence and which is neither a sulzsig
nor an interest in a joint venture.

The Group uses the equity method to account fanvwsstments in associates. Under the equity ndetho
investments in associates are initially recogniaedost and adjusted thereafter to recognize thoei@s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensigeme of the associate. The Group also recognize
the changes in the Group’s share of equity of agtasc

When the Group subscribes for additional new shafesmn associate at a percentage different from its
existing ownership percentage, the resulting cag’gmount of the investment differs from the amaaft
the Group’s proportionate interest in the associaléhe Group records such a difference as an awiumt

to investments with the corresponding amount clthrge credited to capital surplus - changes in the
Group’s share of the equity of associates. If @®up’s ownership interest is reduced due to the
additional subscription of new shares of an assecithe proportionate amount of the gains or losses
previously recognized in other comprehensive incomelation to that associate is reclassifiedrafipor

loss on the same basis as would be required ifnthesstee had directly disposed of the related aswet
liabilities. When the adjustment should be debiedapital surplus, but the capital surplus reeph
from investments accounted for by the equity mettsodhsufficient, the shortage is debited to retdin
earnings.
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When the Group’s share of losses of an associategaint venture equals or exceeds its intereshan

associate and joint venture (which includes anyyoag amount of the investment accounted for usireg

equity method and long-term interests that, in wura®, form part of the Group’s net investmenthe t
associate and joint venture), the Group discontimeeognizing its share of further losses. Adddio
losses and liabilities are recognized only to theemt that the Group has incurred legal obligaticors

constructive obligations, or made payments on hetidhat associate and joint venture.

When the Group determines impairment loss, theesptirrying amount of an investment in an associate
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment asiagle asset by comparing its recoverable amouttt i
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognizedn® part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognizedthe extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity meftwd the date on which its investment ceases tarbe
associate. Any retained investment is measuréairatalue at that date, and the fair value is rdgd as

its fair value on initial recognition as a finaricasset. The difference between the previous iteyry
amount of the associate attributable to the rethimrest and its fair value is included in théedaination

of the gain or loss on the disposal of the asseciaThe Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognized in other comprehensive income in rafati that associate on the same basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposetthefrelated assets or liabilities.

When a Group entity transacts with its associatefitp and losses resulting from these transactames
recognized in the Group’s consolidated financiateshents only to the extent that interests in Hsociate
that are not related to the Group.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cesis laccumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss.

Property, plant and equipment in the course of ttooon are carried at cost, less any recognized
impairment loss. Such assets are depreciatedlassified to the appropriate categories of propeiignt
and equipment when completed and ready for thegnded uses.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment isogeized using the straight-line method. Each
significant part is depreciated separately. Thiimased useful lives, residual values and deprieciat
method are reviewed at the end of each reportingpghewith the effects of any changes in estimates
accounted for on a prospective basis.

On derecognition of an item of property, plant aggiipment, the difference between the sales preceed
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognizedofit or loss.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that aeuired separately are initially measured at eost
subsequently measured at cost less accumulatedtization and accumulated impairment loss.
Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basi§he estimated useful life, residual value, and
amortization method are reviewed at the end of e@gbrting period, with the effect of any changeshie
estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.

On derecognition of an intangible asset, the dffiee between the net disposal proceeds and thencarr
amount of the asset is recognized in profit or.loss
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Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets OtherThan Goodwiill

At the end of each reporting period, the Groupewesgi the carrying amounts of its tangible and initalag
assets, excluding goodwill, to determine whetherahs any indication that those assets have suaffen
impairment loss. If any such indication existg thcoverable amount of the asset is estimatecdar ¢o
determine the extent of the impairment loss. Whéennot possible to estimate the recoverable arhof

an individual asset, the Group estimates the reable amount of the cash-generating unit to whieh t
asset belongs. Corporate assets are allocatetietosrhallest group of cash-generating units on a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives antangible assets not yet available for use areedefor
impairment at least annually and whenever theam imdication that the asset may be impaired.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair vdéss costs to sell and value in use. If the reahle
amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is at#onto be less than its carrying amount, the cagry
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit iscestiito its recoverable amount, with the resulting
impairment loss recognized in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss is subsequently reverbedzdrrying amount of the asset or cash-generatiiig

is increased to the revised estimate of its reableramount, but only to the extent of the carrangpunt
that would have been determined had no impairnus# been recognized for the asset or cash-gergeratin
unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairmesgd is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are mggéped when a Group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities areiafiy measured at fair value. Transaction costt tire
directly attributable to the acquisition or issuk fimancial assets and financial liabilities (othibran
financial assets and financial liabilities at faalue through profit or loss) are added to or destlidrom
the fair value of the financial assets or finandialbilities, as appropriate, on initial recognitio
Transaction costs directly attributable to the &itjan of financial assets or financial liabiliieat fair
value through profit or loss are recognized immigdlyain profit or loss.

Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financiab&sare recognized and derecognized on a tradéasite

Financial assets are classified into the followdategories: Financial assets at fair value thrqaroffit or
loss, available-for-sale financial assets, anddaard receivables.

a. Financial assets at fair value through profibss

Financial assets are classified as at fair valusutfh profit or loss when the financial asset ikl Her
trading.

Financial assets at fair value through profit @slare stated at their fair value, with any gam®sses
arising on remeasurement recognized in profit es.lo The net gain or loss recognized in profitbss|
does not incorporate any dividend or interest ehorefinancial assets. Refer to Note 28 for relate
disclosures.

-22 -



b. Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-deivest that are either designated as available-fier-aa
are not classified as loans and receivables, loetdaturity investments or financial assets at Vaiue
through profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measurethiatvalue. Changes in the carrying amount of
available-for-sale monetary financial assets ne¢ptio changes in foreign currency exchange rates,
interest income calculated using the effectiveregemethod and dividends on available-for-salétgqu
investments are recognized in profit or loss. Otlehanges in the carrying amount of
available-for-sale financial assets are recognizedother comprehensive income and will be
reclassified to profit or loss when the investmisrdisposed of or is determined to be impaired.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instrumeats recognized in profit or loss when the Group’s
right to receive the dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do navér a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair values cannot be reliably measured andatives that are linked to and must be settled b
delivery of such unquoted equity investments aragueed at cost less any identified impairment &bss
the end of each reporting period and presentedsegparate line item as financial assets carriedsit

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of timaricial assets can be reliably measured, the diabn
assets are remeasured at fair value. The differbatwveen the carrying amount and the fair value is
recognized in other comprehensive income on firradsets. Any impairment losses are recognized
in profit and loss.

c. Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including cash and caslvalgnt, debt investments with no active market and
notes and accounts receivable) are measured atizanocost using the effective interest methods les
any impairment, except for short-term receivablegmthe effect of discounting is immaterial.

Cash equivalents include time deposits with origmaturities within three months from the date of
acquisition, which are highly liquid, readily comtible to a known amount of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. These ceghivalents are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments.

d. Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair valueugh profit or loss, are assessed for indicatérs o
impairment at the end of each reporting period.nafcial assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence, as a result of omaane events that occurred after the initial recogniof

the financial assets, that the estimated futurk flag/s of the investment have been affected.

For financial assets carried at amortized costh sisctrade receivables, are assessed for impaimnent
a collective basis even if they were assessedonbetimpaired individually. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could luime the Group’s past experience with collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed @atgin the portfolio past the average credit merio
as well as observable changes in national or lecahomic conditions that correlate with defaults on
receivables, and other situations.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost,atm@unt of the impairment loss recognized is the

difference between the asset’s carrying amountthadpresent value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effecinterest rate.
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For financial assets measured at amortized costinifa subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease cagladbedrobjectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recoghimepairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss to the extent that the carrying amount ofitlrestment at the date the impairment is reverses d
not exceed what the amortized cost would have hadrihe impairment not been recognized.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a sigaiit or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered to be objectividence of impairment.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is atereid to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognized in other comprehensive incameereclassified to profit or loss in the period.

In respect of available-for-sale equity securitiegpairment loss previously recognized in profilass

IS not reversed through profit or loss. Any in@@an fair value subsequent to an impairment Isss i
recognized in other comprehensive income. In @spé available-for-sale debt securities, the
impairment loss is subsequently reversed througfitpor loss if an increase in the fair value oéth
investment can be objectively related to an eveotising after the recognition of the impairmerddo

For financial assets that are carried at cost,atineunt of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amountla@gresent value of the estimated future cashsflow
discounted at the current market rate of returrafeimilar financial asset. Such impairment logs w
not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of a financial asset is redusgdts impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivablesyevtiee carrying amount is reduced through the tise o
an allowance account. When trade receivables amsidered uncollectable, they are written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent reesvefiamounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in theyingrramount of the allowance account are
recognized in profit or loss, except for uncollabte trade receivables that are written off agatimst
allowance account.

e. Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognizes a financial asset only whercontractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire or when it transfers the financiakias®id substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another party.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its etyiréhe difference between the asset’s carryinguamo
and the sum of the consideration received andvabki and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognized in other comprehensive income is reeegnin profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when: The Group hassept obligation (legal or constructive) as a tesiuh

past event; it is probable that the Group will bguired to settle the obligation; and a reliablamesge can

be made for the amount of the obligation.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the ceresibn received or receivable. Revenue is redémed
estimated customer returns, rebates and othersialibwances.
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a. Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized wheimeafollowing conditions are satisfied:
* The Group has transferred to the buyer the siganitirisks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e The Group retains neither continuing managerilvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold

® The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
e |tis probable that the economic benefits assediatith the transaction will flow to the Group; and
® The costs incurred or to be incurred in respeth®@ftransaction can be measured reliably.

The Group does not recognize sales revenue on ialatelelivered to subcontractors because this
delivery does not involve a transfer of risks aealards of material ownership.

Specifically, sales of goods are recognized whardgare delivered and titles has passed to the buye
b. Rendering service income
Service income is recognized when services areagedy
c. Royalties
Royalty revenue is recognized on an accrual basisccordance with the substance of the relevant
agreement and provided that it is probable thatetwomic benefits will flow to the Group and that
the amount of revenue can be measured reliablyyalBoarrangements that are based on production,
sales and other measures are recognized by re¢et@tiee underlying arrangement.
d. Dividend and interest income
Dividend income from investments is recognized wheshareholder’s right to receive payment has
been established provided that it is probable teteconomic benefits will flow to the Group aneé th
amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income from a financial asset is recoghizlen it is probable that the economic benefils wi
flow to the Group and the amount of income can bagured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a

time basis by reference to the principal outstagdind at the applicable effective interest rate.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases wheneveerins of a lease transfer substantially all thlesrand
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All otherdease classified as operating leases.

a. The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognized straight-line basis over the term of the raitva
lease.

b. The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognized as ansxpeara straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Employee Benefits
a. Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term émgpe benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exghdor the related services.

b. Retirement benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefdns are recognized as an expense when
employees have rendered services entitling thetimetaontributions.

Defined benefit costs (including service costs, imdé¢rest and remeasurement) under the defined
benefit retirement plans are determined using toggpted unit credit method. Service costs and net
interest on a net defined benefit liability (assa® recognized as employee benefits expensesin th
period that they occur. Remeasurement, comprisaotgarial gains and losses and the return on plan
assets (excluding interest), is recognized in ott@mprehensive income in the period in which it
occurs. Remeasurement recognized in other compselee income is reflected immediately in
retained earnings and will not be reclassifiedrtafipor loss.

The net defined benefit liability (asset) represethie actual deficit (surplus) in the Group’s deéin
benefit plan. Any surplus resulting from this edition is limited to the present value of any refs
from the plans or reductions in future contributida the plans.
c. Termination benefits
A liability for termination benefits is recognizeat the earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of the termination benefits amiden the Group recognizes any related restructuring
costs.
Share-based Payment Arrangements - Employee Sharep@ns
The fair value at the grant date of employee slogtéons is expensed on a straight-line basis dver t
vesting period, based on the Group’s best estinadtdse number of shares or options that are erpleict
ultimately vest, with a corresponding increasedpital surplus - employee share options. It ingezed
as an expense in full at the grant date if vestedadiately.
At the end of each reporting period, the Groupsewiits estimate of the number of employee sharensp
expected to vest. The impact of the revision ef dhiginal estimates is recognized in profit orslesich
that the cumulative expenses reflects the revistichate, with a corresponding adjustment to thdtalap
surplus - employee share options.
Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the teently payable and deferred tax.

a. Current tax

According to the Income Tax Law, an additional &X.0% of unappropriated earnings is provided for
as income tax in the year the shareholders appooretain the earnings.

Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities are addo or deducted from the current year’s tax [siow.

-26 -



b. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differenbesveen the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities and the corresponding tax bases usethéncomputation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognized for all taxalemporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognized for all deductible temporaiffedences and unused loss carryforwards to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profitsl e available against which those deductible tammyo
differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxatdmporary differences associated with investmints
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Gsoaple to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporaffedénce will not reverse in the foreseeable future
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temyatdferences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognized to the extent thigt probable that there will be sufficient taxaplefits
against which to utilize the benefits of the tengpgrdifferences and that they are expected to sevier

the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is wadeat the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probabé sufficient taxable profits will be availabie
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. prAviously unrecognized deferred tax asset is also
reviewed at the end of each reporting period acdgeized to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profit will allow the deferrtak assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measuréukatx rates that are expected to apply in thiega
which a liability is settled or an asset is realizeased on tax rates and tax laws that have besrtesl

or substantively enacted by the end of the reppriweriod. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequeticat would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting petiodecover or settle the carrying amount of itetss
and liabilities.

c. Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred taxes are recognized in poofibss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or diyantequity, in which case, the current and defirre
tax are also recognized in other comprehensiveniecor directly in equity respectively.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES O F ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting p@gi management is required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying anulagsets and liabilities that are not readilyaappt
from other sources. The estimates and associa®ahgtions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered relevant. Acaemilts may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are redemn an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in whichegténates are revised if the revisions affect ahbt
period or in the period of the revisions and futpegiods if the revisions affect both current antufe
periods.
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a. Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment,lttss Group takes into consideration the estimation
of future cash flows. The amount of the impairmkass is measured as the difference between an
asset’s carrying amount and the present valueeoéstimated future cash flows (excluding futurealitre
losses that have not been incurred) discountetieafimancial asset’'s original effective interediera
Where the actual future cash flows are less thpe@®d, a material impairment loss may arise.

b. Inventory write-downs

The net realizable value of inventory is its estedaselling price in the ordinary course of business

its estimated costs of completion and disposal.e €htimation of net realizable value is based on
current market conditions and historical experiewith product sales of a similar nature. Changes i
market conditions may have a material impact orettlignation of the net realizable value.

c. Provision for sales returns and allowances
Provision for sales returns and allowances refetthé Group’s best estimate of the future outfldw o
the economic resources that will be required far giettlement of the Group’s obligations. Such
estimate is made on the basis of historical expeeiemanagement’s judgment, and any known factors

that would significantly affect sales returns afidveances. Changes in market conditions may have a
material impact on the estimation of provisions.

. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31

2017 2016
Cash on hand $ 102 % 99
Checking accounts and demand deposits 9,638,350 11,709,953
Cash equivalents
Time deposits with original maturities of less tfBamonths 4,503,937 3,248,279

$ 14,142,389 $ 14,958,331

. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PRO FIT OR LOSS - CURRENT

December 31

2017 2016
Beneficiary certificates - open-end funds $ 1,150,400 $ 1,147,144
Domestic quoted shares 67,095 80,585
Convertible bonds 53,722 -

$ 1,271,217 $ 1,227,729
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8. DEBT INVESTMENTS WITH NO ACTIVE MARKET - CURREN T

December 31

2017 2016
Certificates of deposit $ 80,534 $ 57,439
Time deposits with original maturities of more tif&amonths - 1,290

80,534 $ 58,729

The market interest rates of time deposits with caiginal maturity of more than 3 months were
0.20%-1.75% per annum as of December 31, 2016.

Refer to Note 31 for information relating to dettestments with no active market pledged as sgcurit

9. NOTES RECEIVABLE, TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER R ECEIVABLES

December 31

2017 2016
Notes receivable
Operating $ 4 $ -
Accounts receivable - trade
Operating
Third parties $ 5,598,693 $ 4,604,089
Related parties 318,151 358,250
5,916,844 4,962,339
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts 185,393 161,680

$ 5731451  $ 4,800,659

Other receivables

Income tax refund receivable $ 116,866 $ 164,028
Factored accounts receivable 147,526 201,744
Others 24,207 23,585

$ 288,599 $ 389,357

Accounts Receivable - Trade

For the balances of trade receivables that weredo@sat the end of the reporting period, the Griag not
recognized an allowance for impaired trade recéésmbecause there has been no significant change in
credit quality, and the amounts were still conséderecoverable. The Group did not hold any caléhter
other credit enhancements for these balances woit diave a legal right to make offsets against any
amounts owed by the Group to the counterparty.
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The aging of receivables was as follows:

December 31

2017 2016
Not past due $ 5,457,310 $ 4,405,250
1-60 days 406,230 515,772
61-90 days 429 319
91-120 days 38,566 40,293
More than 120 days 14,309 705

$ 5,916,844  $ 4,962,339
The above aging schedule was based on the numbeysfpast the end of the credit term.
The Group had no receivables that were past duedbuitpaired.

The movements of the allowance for doubtful tramteivables were as follows:

Individually Collectively
Assessed for Assessed for
Impairment Impairment Total
Balance at January 1, 2016 $ 83,522 $ 50,176 $ 133,698
Add: Impairment losses recognized on
receivables 11,910 111,642 123,552
Less: Amounts written off during the year as
uncollectable (95,432) - (95,432)
Foreign exchange translation losses - (138) (138)
Balance at December 31, 2016 - 161,680 161,680
Add: Impairment losses recognized on
receivables - 22,958 22,958
Foreign exchange translation losses - 755 755
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ - $ 185,393 $ 185,393

The Group recognized an impairment loss on tradeivables amounting to $0 thousand as of both
December 31, 2017 and 2016. These amounts magéntgiped to customers that were in the process of
liquidation or experiencing severe financial diffites. The Group had no collaterals for these
receivables.

The factored accounts receivable were as follows:
(In Thousands)

Factor Collected Discount
Factor Amount Amount Prepayments Rate (%) Factor Limit

For the year ended

December 31, 2017
HSBC Bank US$ 41,383 US$ 35,711 $ - - US$ 12,800
For the year ended

December 31, 2016
HSBC Bank US$ 93,776 US$ 85,525 - - US$ 16,500
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10.

11.

12.

Note: Recorded under other receivables
The limit above was used on a revolving basis.

The factor was HSBC Bank (Taiwan) Limited. Thikesaas without recourse.

INVENTORIES
December 31
2017 2016
Raw materials $ 3,941,530 $ 3,299,881
Work-in-process 1,295,526 925,394
Semifinished products 1,883,751 909,398
Finished goods 71,539 87,663

7,192,346 $ 5,222,336

The costs of inventories recognized as cost of g@ott for the years ended December 31, 2017 ab@l 20
was $30,365,137 thousand and $34,518,774 thouszspkctively.

The cost of goods sold for the years ended DeceBhe2017 and 2016 included inventory write-dowhs o
$19,361 thousand and $8,649 thousand, respectively.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS - NON-CURRE NT
December 31
2017 2016
Private equity
Domestic listed, common shares $ 434,763 $ 372,051

The Corporation obtained shares issued by Apacehmnriaogy Inc. in a private placement. Under Adicl
43-8 of the Securities and Exchange Act, the teansffthese shares is restricted.

The Corporation received the cash refund of $49t500sand due to a capital reduction from APACER
Technology Inc. in the third quarter of 2016.

FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT COST - NON-CURRENT
December 31
2017 2016
Domestic unlisted common shares $ 362,838 $ 435,218
Overseas unlisted common shares 394,789 277,672
Domestic private equity funds 60,000 -

$ 817,627 $ 712,890

Classified according to financial asset measuremetegories

Available-for-sale $ 817,627 $ 712.890
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Management believed that the above unlisted eduigstments held by the Group had fair values which
could not be reliably measured because the rangeeafonable fair value estimates was significant.

Therefore, they were measured at cost less impatratehe end of the reporting period.

The Group disposed of certain financial assets uredsat cost with carrying amounts of $6,770 thadsa

during 2017, recognizing a disposal gain of $7 Bwhisand.

The Group recognized impairment losses of $169tb&dsand in 2017 and $112,475 thousand in 2016 on

domestic and overseas unlisted common shares.

13. SUBSIDIARIES

a. Subsidiaries included in the consolidated firgrstatements

The consolidated financial statement preparedemthin as follows:

Investor

Phison Electronics Corp.

Global Flash Limited

Core Storage Electronic
(Samoa) Limited

Phisontech Electronics
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.

Lian Xu Dong
Investment
Corporation

Power Flash (Samoa)
Limited

Everspeed Technology
Limited

* On June 20, 2017, the Corporation acquired thmareing shares of Phisontech Electronics

Investee (Note 1)

Lian Xu Dong Investment
Corporation

Phison Electronics Japan
Corp.

Emtops Electronics Corp.

Phisontech Electronics
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.

Global Flash Limited

Power Flash (Samoa)
Limited

Everspeed Technology
Limited

Phisontech (Shenzhen)
Limited

Core Storage Electronic
(Samoa) Limited

Hefei Core Storage
Electronic Limited

Phisontech Electronics
Taiwan Corp.

Ostek Corporation

Power Flash (HK) Limited

Memoryexchange
Corporation

Cloud Solution Global
Limited

Fast Choice Global
Limited

Proportion of Ownership

December 31

Nature of Activities
Investment
Sales and service office

Sales of flash memory controllers and
peripheral system applications
products

Design, production and sale of flash
memory controllers and peripheral
system applications

Investment and trade

Investment and trade

Trade of electronic components

Design, R&D, import and export of
storage devices and electronics
Investment and trade

Design, R&D, production and sale of
integrated circuits, systems and
electronics hardware and software
and rendering of related services.

Design of ASIC and R&D,
manufacture, and sale of ASIC for
IP and technical support service

Manufacture and trade of electronic
components

Sale of electronic products
Design and sale of flash memory
related products

Trade of electronic components

Trade of electronic components

(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. which increased its sharehgklito 100%.

b. Subsidiaries excluded from the consolidatedfina statements:

c. During the preparation of the consolidated foialhstatements, the substantial transactions lestlee

consolidated entities were entirely written off.
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2017 2016
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 87.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00

None.

Remark



14. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD

December 31

Investments in Associates 2017
Unlisted shares

Material associates

Kingston Solutions Inc. $ 1,623,790
Associates that are not individually material

Epostar Electronics (BVI) Corporation (Note 25) 47,741

Microtops Design Corporation (“Microtops”) 21,563

PMS Technology Corporation 16,617

Flexmedia Electronics Corporation -
$ 1,709,711

a. Material associate

2016

$ 1,149,415

79,732
24,211
2,199

1,063

$ 1,256,620

Proportion of Ownership and
Voting Rights

December 31

Name of Associate 2017

Kingston Solutions Inc. 32.91%

2016

32.91%

In April 2014, Emtops Electronics Corporation arasFChoice Global Limited invested in Manutius
IP, Inc. at 19% and 48% of its shares, respectivelshe Group did not have substantial control over
Manutius IP, Inc.; and therefore, the investmenMianutius IP, Inc. was accounted for by using the
equity method. Manutius IP, Inc. was approveddissolution by the USA government on July 8,

2016.

Refer to Table 6 “Information on Investees” for theture of activities, principal place of businassi

country of incorporation of the associates.

The summarized financial information below représesmounts shown in the associates’ financial
statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs adijistthe Group for equity accounting purposes.

Kingston Solutions Inc.

December 31

2017
Current assets $ 6,703,051
Non-current assets 149,930
Current liabilities (1,250,947)
Non-current liabilities (668,003)
Equity $ 4,934,031
Equity attributable to the Corporation $ 1,623,790
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2016
$ 7,227,726
167,420

(3,589,797)
(312,749)

$ 3,492,600
$ 1,149,415



For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Operating revenue $ 20,205,762 $ 17,458,278
Net profit for the year $ 1441523 $ 1,492,011
Other comprehensive loss (92) (400)
Total comprehensive income for the year $ 1441431 $ 1,491,611

Aggregate information of associates that aramvidually material

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
The Group’s share of:
Net loss for the year $ (32,037) $ (31,580)
Other comprehensive income 14 -
Total comprehensive loss for the year $ (32,023) $ (31,580)

The fiscal year end date for Microtops is March 3Eor the purpose of applying the equity method of
accounting, the consolidated financial statemehtsliorotops as of March 31, 2017 and 2016 have
been used as the Corporation considers thatripsacticable for Microtops to prepare a separédtefse
financial statements as of December 31. Appropaajustments have been made accordingly for the
effects of significant transactions between thastesland December 31, 2017 and 2016.

The Group share of losses of an associate is lintdats interest in that associate. The amount of
unrecognized share of losses of those associatieacd from the relevant unaudited financial
statements of associates, both for the period amdilatively, were as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Unrecognized share of losses of associates forehe $ (1,280) $ (15)
Accumulated unrecognized share of losses of agsscia $ (1,295) $ (15)

Except for Manutius IP Inc., Asadhya Enterprisesvd®e Limited and Flexmedia Electronics
Corporation, investments accounted for using thétggethod and the share of profit or loss anaoth
comprehensive income of those investments weralleadd based on financial statements which have
been audited. Management believes there is noriadaii@pact on the equity method accounting or
the calculation of the share of profit or loss asttier comprehensive income from the financial
statements of the aforementioned associates whioh ot been audited.

All the aforementioned associates are accountedsiog the equity method.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land Testing Office Other Construction
Land Improvements Buildings Equipment Equipment Equipment in Progress Total

Cost
Balance at January 1, 2016 $ 547,014 $ 28,685 $ 1,060,552 $ 268,973 $ 47,706 $ 17,427 $ - $ 1,970,357
Additions 266,724 90 78,930 127,878 13,559 34,846 390,000 912,027
Disposals - - - (61,838) (20,964) (2,679) - (85,481)
Gains on deconsolidation of

subsidiaries - - - (2,331) - (1,783) - (4,114)
Effects of foreign currency exchange

difference - - - (408) (419) (1,327) - (2,154)
Reclassification - - 2,859 2,198 905 - - 5,962
Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 813,738 $ 28,775 $ 1,142,341 $ 334,472 $ 40,787 $ 46,484 $ 390,000 $ 2,796,597
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at January 1, 2016 $ - $ 13,570 $ 156,534 $ 122,348 $ 30,204 $ 10,306 $ - $ 332,962
Disposals - - - (61,838) (20,964) (2,679) - (85,481)
Depreciation - 3,672 30,726 73,988 9,932 5,371 - 123,689
Gains on deconsolidation of

subsidiaries - - - (507) - (186) - (693)
Effects of foreign currency exchange

difference - - - (146) (113) 91) - (350)
Reclassification - - - - 19 - - 19
Balance at December 31, 2016 $ - $ 17,242 $ 187,260 $ 133,845 $ 19,078 $ 12,721 $ - $ 370,146

Balance at December 31, 2016, net $ 813,738 $ 11,533 $ 955,081 $ 200,627 $ 21,709 $ 33,763 $ 390,000 $ 2,426,451

Cost
Balance at January 1, 2017 $ 813,738 $ 28,775 $ 1,142,341 $ 334,472 $ 40,787 $ 46,484 $ 390,000 $ 2,796,597
Additions - - 82,635 103,215 15,027 14,535 351,000 566,412
Disposals - - - (47,548) (8,708) (6,080) - (62,336)
Effects of foreign currency exchange

difference - - - 428 (49) (558) - (179)
Reclassification - - 741,000 24,140 (372) (24,059) (741,000) (291)
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 813,738 $ 28,775 $ 1,965,976 $ 414,707 $ 46,685 $ 30,322 $ - $ 3,300,203
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at January 1, 2017 $ - $ 17,242 $ 187,260 $ 133,845 $ 19,078 $ 12,721 $ - $ 370,146
Disposals - - - (47,548) (8,708) (6,080) - (62,336)
Depreciation - 3,684 45,814 102,040 13,173 4,653 - 169,364
Effects of foreign currency exchange

difference - - - 155 - (7) - 148
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ - $ 20,926 $ 233,074 $ 188,492 $ 23,543 $ 11,287 $ - $ 477,322
Balance at December 31, 2017, net $ 813,738 $ 7,849 $ 1,732,902 $ 226,215 $ 23,142 $ 19,035 $ - $ 2,822,881

The above items of property, plant and equipmest dapreciated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Land improvements 7 years
Buildings 20-50 years
Buildings - electrical engineering 20 years
Testing equipment 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Other equipment 3-5 years

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer Technology

Software License Fees Patents Total
Balance at January 1, 2016 $ 69,751 $ 105,232 $ 23,640 $ 198,623
Additions 143,845 33,563 - 177,408
Amortization (74,763) (47,911) - (122,584)
Impairment losses recognized - - (23,640) (23,640)
Gains on deconsolidation of

subsidiaries (5,526) - - (5,526)
(Continued)
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17.

Computer Technology

Software License Fees Patents Total
Reclassification $ (1,757) $ - $ - $ (1,757)
Effects of foreign currency
exchange differences (227) - - (227)

Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 131,413 $ 90,884 $ - $ 222297

Balance at January 1, 2017 $ 131,413 $ 90,884 $ - $ 222,297
Additions 127,129 34,827 - 161,956
Amortization (104,999) (61,092) - (166,091)
Effects of foreign currency

exchange differences (32) - - (32)

Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 153,511 $ 64,619 $ - $ 218,130
(Concluded)

The Group’s patents with indefinite useful livesrevéested for impairment at least annually and wkien
there is an indication that it may be impaired.

A subsidiary held a patent for a multimedia digp#adture frame. The related products were no longe
produced; therefore, the Group assessed that theefieconomic benefits of the patent cannot be
determined. Also there was no information aboatribt realizable value which could be used as & bas

for valuation. As a result, the Group recognizedrapairment loss for the entire amount of the phie
the current period.

The above items of intangible assets are amortized straight-line basis over the following estiadht
useful lives of the assets:

Computer software 1-3 years
Technology license fees 1-8 years
SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Short-term Borrowings

December 31

2017 2016
Unsecured borrowings
Bank loans $ - $ 580,500
Interest rate (%) - 0.94-1.33
Due date - 2017.3.1
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18. OTHER PAYABLES

19.

December 31

2017 2016
Other payables
Salaries and bonuses payable $ 2,598,177 $ 2,052,764
Others 1,138,600 1,099,760

3,736,777 3,152,524

PROVISIONS - CURRENT

December 31

2017 2016

Sales returns and allowances $ 292,081 $ 344,076
For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Balance at January 1 $ 344,076 $ 149,852
Additional provisions recognized 238,449 408,268
Usage (290,444) (214,044)
Balance at December 31 $ 292,081 $ 344,076

Provisions for sales returns and allowances aien&®td based on historical experience, management’s
judgment, and any known factors that would sigaifity affect returns and allowances and are reeeghi
as a reduction of revenue in the same period ofefaéed product sales.

20. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

a. Defined contribution plan

The Corporation and some subsidiaries of the Gealgpted a pension plan under the Labor Pension
Act (the “LPA"), which is a state-managed defin@mizibution plan. Under the LPA, an entity makes
monthly contributions to employees’ individual piemsaccounts at 6% of monthly salaries and wages.

Defined benefit plan

The defined benefit plan adopted by the Corporaitioaccordance with the Labor Standards Law is
operated by the government of the ROC. Pensiogflterare calculated on the basis of the length of
service and average monthly salaries of the sixthsomefore retirement. The Corporation contributes
amounts equal to 2% of total monthly salaries anges to a pension fund administered by the pension
fund monitoring committee. Pension contributiore @eposited in the Bank of Taiwan in the
committee’s name. Before the end of each yearCimporation assesses the balance in the pension
fund. If the amount of the balance in the pendiaomd is inadequate to pay retirement benefits for
employees who conform to retirement requirementeemext year, the Corporation is required to fund
the difference in one appropriation that shouldrasle before the end of March of the next year. The
pension fund is managed by the Bureau of Labor suiMinistry of Labor (“the Bureau”); the
Corporation has no right to influence the investopaticy and strategy.

-37 -



The amounts included in the balance sheets in cespéhe Corporation’s defined benefit plan wese a
follows:

December 31

2017 2016
Present value of defined benefit obligation $ 116,566 $ 102,213
Fair value of plan assets (31,669) (29,488)
Net defined benefit liability $ 84,897 $ 72,725
Movements in net defined benefit liability (assebre as follows:
Present Value
of the Defined Net Defined
Benefit Fair Value of Benefit
Obligation the Plan Assets Liability (Asset)
Balance at January 1, 2016 $ 94,249 $ (27,348) $ 66,901
Service costs
Current service costs 4,103 - 4,103
Net interest expense (income) 1,602 (465) 1,137
Recognized in profit or loss 5,705 (465) 5,240
Remeasurement
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest) - 216 216
Actuarial loss - changes in financial
assumptions (2,038) - (2,038)
Actuarial loss - experience adjustments 4,297 - 4,297
Recognized in other comprehensive income 2,259 216 2,475
Contributions from the employer - (1,891) (1,891)
Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 102,213 $ (29,488) $ 72,725
Balance at January 1, 2017 $ 102,213 $ (29,488) $ 72,725
Service costs
Current service costs 4,456 - 4,456
Net interest expense (income) 1,840 (531) 1,309
Recognized in profit or loss 6,296 (531) 5,765
Remeasurement
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest) - 231 231
Actuarial loss - changes in financial
assumptions 8,786 - 8,786
Actuarial loss - experience adjustments (729) - (729)
Recognized in other comprehensive income 8,057 231 8,288
Contributions from the employer - (1,881) (1,881)
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 116,566 $ (31,669) $ 84,897
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An analysis by function of the amounts recognizegdrfit or loss in respect of the defined bengiin
is as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Operating costs $ 723 $ 711
Marketing expenses 685 694
Administrative expenses 1,561 1,396
Research and development expenses 2,796 2,439

$ 5,765 $ 5,240

Recognized in other comprehensive income was ara@at loss of $6,880 thousand in 2017 and an
actuarial loss of $2,054 thousand in 2016. Theutative amount of actuarial loss recognized in

other comprehensive income as of December 31, 20872016 was $39,597 thousand and $32,717
thousand, respectively.

Through the defined benefit plan under the Laban&ards Law, the Corporation is exposed to the
following risks:

1) Investment risk: The plan assets are investetbmestic and foreign equity and debt securities,
bank deposits, etc. The investment is conductetheatdiscretion of the Bureau or under the
mandated management. However, in accordance gléliant regulations, the return generated by
plan assets should not be below the interest oate 2-year time deposit with local banks.

2) Interestrisk: A decrease in the governmenthaterest rate will increase the present valuthef
defined benefit obligation; however, this will barpally offset by an increase in the return on the
plan’s debt investments.

3) Salary risk: The present value of the defineddfit obligation is calculated by reference to the
future salaries of plan participants. As suchjrmnease in the salary of the plan participant$ wil
increase the present value of the defined benlgliyation.

The actuarial valuations of the present value ef diefined benefit obligation were carried out by
qualified actuaries. The significant assumptiossdufor the purposes of the actuarial valuationgwe
as follows:

December 31

2017 2016
Discount rate 1.40% 1.80%
Expected rate of salary increase 4.00% 4.00%

If possible reasonable change in each of the sogmif actuarial assumptions will occur and all othe
assumptions will remain constant, the present valuthe defined benefit obligation would increase
(decrease) as follows:

December 31

2017 2016
Discount rate
0.25% increase $ (5,582) $ (4,902)
0.25% decrease $ 5,902 $ 5,182
Expected rate of salary increase
0.25% increase $ 5,443 $ 4,800
0.25% decrease $ (5,191) $ (4,577)
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The sensitivity analysis presented above may notepeesentative of the actual change in the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as it idikely that the change in assumptions would ocaour i
isolation of one another as some of the assumpti@ysbe correlated.

December 31

2017 2016
The expected contributions to the plan for the yesr $ 1,888 $ 1,853
The average duration of the defined benefit oblogat 20 years 21 years

21. EQUITY
a. Share capital

Common shares

December 31

2017 2016
Number of shares authorized (in thousands) 230,000 230,000
Shares authorized $ 2,300,000 $ 2,300,000
Number of shares issued and fully paid (in thousand 197,074 197,074
Shares issued $ 1,970,740 $ 1,970,740

On November 10, 2016, an employee share option \wksapproved by the Corporation’s board of
directors, and the Financial Supervisory Commisge8C) also approved this plan as shown in the
FSC'’s issued document No. 1050049740 and will tffect starting from December 6, 2016. In
accordance with Article 56, No. 2 of the Regulasi@overning the Offering and Issuance of Securities
by Securities Issuers and the regulations of theaisce of employee share options in 2016, shares ca
be issued as a whole or in parts depending ondtualaneeds within the year starting from the diate
issuer received the notification of approval frohe tcompetent authorities. The employee share
options were not issued because a very high cassoéince would be incurred. The employee share
options cannot be issued after December 5, 2017.

On November 13, 2017, an employee share option \wksapproved by the Corporation’s board of
directors, and the Financial Supervisory Commisge8C) also approved this plan as shown in the
FSC'’s issued document No. 1060047052 and will tffect starting from December 5, 2017. In
accordance with Article 56, No. 2 of the Regulasi@overning the Offering and Issuance of Securities
by Securities Issuers and the regulations of theaisce of employee share options in 2017, shares ca
be issued as a whole or in parts depending ondtualaneeds within the year starting from the diate
issuer received the notification of approval frdre tompetent authorities.

Fully paid common shares, which have a par valugT#10, carry one vote per share and carry a right
to dividends.

Of the Corporation’s authorized capital sharesp@®,thousand shares were reserved for the issuance
of employee share options.
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b. Capital surplus

December 31
2017 2016

May be used to offset a deficit, distributed ashadisidends, or
transferred to share capital*

Issuance of ordinary shares $ 6,237,434 $ 6,237,434
The difference between consideration received i gad the

carrying amount of the subsidiaries’ net assetsduactual

disposal or acquisition 148,758 151,444

May only be used to offset a deficit

Expired share options 227 227

May not be used for any purpose

Share of changes in capital surplus of associatgsn ventures 274,083 263,344

$ 6,660,502 $ 6,652,449

* Such capital surplus may be used to offset acdgfin addition, when the Corporation has no
deficit, such capital surplus may be distributedcash dividends or transferred to share capital
(limited to a certain percentage of the Corporasi@apital surplus and once a year).

c. Retained earnings and dividend policy

In accordance with the amendments to the CompafAgismade in May 2015, the recipients of
dividends and bonuses are limited to shareholdedsd® not include employees. The shareholders
held the annual regular meeting on June 15, 2016 ianthat meeting, resolved amendments to the
Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation (the “Artés), particularly the amendment to the policy on
dividend distribution and the addition of the pglan the distribution of employees’ compensation.

The policy on appropriation of earnings and divdietistribution in the amended Articles, where the
Corporation made profit in a fiscal year, the prefall be first utilized for paying taxes, off$ett
losses of previous years, setting aside as legalrve 10% of the remaining profit, setting aside or
reversing a special reserve in accordance witHatwe and regulations, and then any remaining profit
together with any undistributed retained earningsle used by the Corporation’s board of director
as the basis for proposing a distribution plan,clvighould be resolved in the shareholders’ meéting
the distribution of dividends and bonus to sharééid. For the policies on distribution of emplagiee
compensation and remuneration of directors andrgigoes before and after amendment, refer to Note
23(e) “Employees’ compensation and remuneratiatirettors and supervisors”.

The Corporation’s dividend distribution policy takdnto consideration the current and future

investment environment, capital requirements, ddimesd international competition, capital budget

plans, shareholders’ interests, the balance betwetaned earnings and dividends, and the
Corporation’s long-term financial plans. In acamde with the laws and regulations, the board of
directors propose a distribution plan on an anbasis, which should be resolved in the sharehader’

meeting. Profits may be distributed as cash orestividends; however, cash dividends should be at
least 10% of the total distribution.

The Corporation appropriates or reverses a spegsalrve in accordance with Rule No. 1010012865

issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission.stribiutions can be made out of any subsequent
reversal of the debit to other equity items.
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A legal reserve may be used to offset deficits. théf Corporation has no deficit and the legal neser
has exceeded 25% of the Corporation’s paid-in ahpihe excess may be transferred to capital or
distributed in cash.

Except for non-ROC resident shareholders, all $tudders receiving dividends are allowed a tax ¢redi
equal to their proportionate share of the incomeptad by the Corporation.

The appropriations of earnings for 2016 and 204&@ped in the shareholders’ meetings on June 13,
2017 and June 15, 2016, respectively, were asisilo

Appropriation of Earnings Dividends Per Share (NT$)
For Year 2016 For Year 2015 For Year 2016 For Year 2015
Legal reserve $ 486,699 $ 400,001
(Reversal from) appropriation
to special reserve (85,393) 106,302
Cash dividends 2,759,036 2,368,488 $14 $12

The appropriation of earnings for 2017 had beempgsed by the Corporation’s board of directors on
March 16, 2018. The appropriation and dividendsspare were as follows:

Appropriation Dividends Per
of Earnings Share (NT$)

Legal reserve $ 576,097
Reversal from special reserve (25,965)
Cash dividends 3,350,258 $17

The appropriation of earnings for 2017 are subje¢he resolution of the shareholders’ meetingeo b
held on June 8, 2018.

Other equity items
1) Exchange differences on translating the findrst&tements of foreign operations

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Balance at January 1 $ (66,816) $ (26,608)
Exchange differences arising on translating tharfaal
statements of foreign operations (392) (48,443)
Related income tax 61 8,235
Balance at December 31 $ (67,147) $ (66,816)

2) Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-salefinial assets

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Balance at January 1 $ 40,851 $ (84,750)
Unrealized gain arising on revaluation of availafolesale
financial assets 62,712 125,601
Balance at December 31 $ 103,563 $ 40,851
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e.

Non-controlling interests

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Balance at January 1 $ 5,400 $ 221,533
Acquisition of non-controlling interest in subsides of

Phisontech Electronics (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. (Nd@g 2 (7,626) -
Non-controlling interest reduction from Everspeetiinology

Limited (Note 26) - (147,375)
Non-proportional investment in Epostar Electror{i8¥|1)

Corporation (Note 25) - (7,710)
Others - 4577
Attributable to non-controlling interests:

Share of profit (loss) for the year 318 (65,149)

Exchange difference arising on translation of fgnegntities 1,908 (476)
Balance at December 31 $ - $ 5,400

Treasury shares

For Company

Credit and
Shareholders’
Equity (In
Thousands of
Treasury Shares Shares)
Number of shares at January 1, 2016 -
Increase during the year 300
Decrease during the year (300)

Number of shares at December 31, 2016 - -

After the board of directors meeting on August 81&, the Corporation decided to buy back shares
under Article 28-2 of the Securities and Exchangd @nd under the Regulations Governing Share
Repurchase by Exchange-Listed and OTC-Listed Comapgublished by the Securities and Futures
Bureau. The purpose of the share buy-back is totaia the Corporation’s credit and shareholders’
equity. The planned buy-back period is from Aug®s2016 to October 8, 2016. The Corporation
planned to buy back 7,500 thousand shares at grim@sNT$189 to NT$270 per share.

Under the Securities and Exchange Act, the Corjmorashall neither pledge treasury shares nor
exercise shareholders’ rights on these shares, asictihe rights to receive dividends and to vote.
Under Article 28-2, paragraphs 4 of the Securitied Exchange Act, companies that buy back shares
in order to maintain company credit and sharehsldsguity, and reduce the shares subsequently must
apply for an amendment of registration of shareitahwithin six months after the buy-back. The
Corporation completed the procedures for the chahgeapital registration on December 5, 2016.
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22.

INCOME TAXES

a.

Income tax recognized in profit or loss
The major components of tax expense were as fallows

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Current tax
In respect of the current year $ 976,422 $ 722,500
Income tax on unappropriated earnings 170,486 118,722
Adjustments for prior periods (100,245) (100,417)
1,046,663 740,805
Deferred tax
In respect of the current period (90,083) (65,722)
Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss $ 956,580 $ 675,083

A reconciliation of accounting profit and income& &xpense for 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016

Profit before tax from continuing operations $ 6,717,870 $ 5,476,926
Income tax expense calculated at the statutory rate $ 1,142,671 $ 927,843
Nondeductible expenses in determining taxable ircom 93 -
Unrecognized deductible temporary differences (4,837) 8,358
Tax-exempt income (255,057) (284,765)
Income tax on unappropriated earnings 170,486 118,722
Unrecognized loss carryforwards - 1,509
Effect of different tax rate of group entitles ogtémg in other

jurisdictions 3,469 3,833
Adjustments for prior years’ tax (100,245) (100,417)
Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss $ 956,580 $ 675,083

The applicable corporate income tax rate used bygtioup entities in the ROC is 17%, while the
applicable tax rate used by subsidiaries in Ch;@5%. Tax rates used by other group entities
operating in other jurisdictions are based on &éxddaws in those jurisdictions.

In February 2018, it was announced by the Presithanthe Income Tax Act in the ROC was amended
and, starting from 2018, the corporate income & will be adjusted from 17% to 20%. In addition,
the rate of the corporate surtax applicable to 2iappropriated earnings will be reduced from 16% t
5%. Deferred tax assets recognized as at DeceBihe#017 are expected to be adjusted and would
increase by $54,710 thousand in 2018.

The appropriation of the 2018 earnings is uncergaid is subject to approval at the shareholders’

meeting; thus, the potential consequences of incaxen the 2017 unappropriated earnings are not
reliably determinable.
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b.

Income tax recognized in other comprehensiverie

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Deferred income tax
Recognized in other comprehensive income
Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plan $ 1,408 $ 421
Translation of foreign operations 61 8,235
Total income tax recognized in other comprehengiveme $ 1,469 $ 8,656

Current tax assets and liabilities

December 31

2017 2016
Current tax assets
Tax refund receivable $ 9,237 $ 1,866
Current tax liabilities
Income tax payable $ 1,092,802 $ 732,348

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The movements of deferred tax assets and defexxddhbilities were as follows:

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Recognized ir

Other
Compre-
Opening Recognized ir hensive Exchange Closing
Balance Profit or Loss Income Differences Balance
Deferred tax assets
Temporary differences
Doubtful accounts $ 19,107 $ 2,507 $ - $ (6) $ 21,608
Inventory write-downs 49,277 3,284 - 6 52,567
Unearned revenue - 4,865 - 63 4,928
Provisions 58,493 (8,839) - - 49,654
Defined benefit obligation 12,363 662 1,408 - 14,433
Unrealized exchange losses 17,767 59,577 - 131 77,475
Impairment loss on financial assets 23,899 20,576 - - 44,475
Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations 13,685 - 61 - 13,746
Share of losses of subsidiaries and
associates 22,107 7,117 - - 29,224
Property, plant and equipment 1,963 (48) - - 1,915

$ 218,661 $ 89,701 $ 1.469 $ 194 $ 310,025

Deferred tax liabilities

Unrealized exchange gains $ 315 $ (382) $ - $ 67 $ -
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For the year ended December 31, 2016

Recognized ir

Other
Compre-
Opening Recognized ir hensive Exchange Closing
Balance Profit or Loss Income Differences Balance
Deferred tax assets
Temporary differences
Doubtful accounts $ 15,012 $ 4,117 $ - $ (22) $ 19,107
Inventory write-downs 47,808 1,470 - (2) 49,277
Provisions 25,475 33,018 - - 58,493
Defined benefit obligation 11,373 569 421 - 12,363
Unrealized exchange losses 6,183 11,584 - - 17,767
Impairment loss on financial assets 12,428 11,471 - - 23,899
Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations 5,450 - 8,235 - 13,685
Share of losses of subsidiaries and
associates 20,103 2,004 - - 22,107
Property, plant and equipment 2,011 (48) - - 1,963

$ 145,843 $ 64,185 $ 8,656 $ (23) $ 218,661

Deferred tax liabilities

Unrealized exchange gains $ 1,858 $ (1537) $ - $ (6) $ 315

Integrated income tax information

December 31

2017 2016
Unappropriated retained earnings
Generated on and after January 1, 1998 $ 14521886 $ 11,928,136
Note
Balance of imputed credits account $ 1555590 $ 1,341,629
Note

December 31

2017 2016
(Expected) (Actual)
Creditable ratios for distribution of earnings Note 14.78%

Note: Since the amended Income Tax Act announcéelmmuary 2018 abolished the imputation tax
system, related information for 2017 is not apjtllea

Income tax assessments

Associate For the Year Ended
Phison Electronics Corp. 2015
Lian Xu Dong Investment Corporation 2015
Emtops Electronics Corp. 2015
Ostek Corporation 2015
Phisontech Electronics Taiwan Corp. 2015
Memoryexchange Corporation 2015
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23. NET PROFIT AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
The following items were included in the net prédit 2017 and 2016:
a. Other gains and losses

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016

Impairment loss recognized on financial assets $ (169,512) $ (112,475)
Net foreign exchange (losses) gains, net (404,573) 106,951
Gains on deconsolidation of subsidiaries - 45,649
Impairment loss recognized on intangible assets - (23,640)
(Losses) gains arising on financial assets classds held for

trading (4,585) 3,972
Net gain on disposal of financial assets measuredst 7,545 -
Others (761) (4,299)

$ (571,886) $ 16,158

b. Other income

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Interest income
Bank deposits $ 42,511 $ 35,189
Rental income 2,530 2,444
Dividend income 29,947 40,825
Others 45,689 82,406

$ 120,677 $ 160,864

c. Depreciation and amortization

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Property, plant and equipment $ 169,364 $ 123,689
Intangible assets 166,091 122,584

$ 335,455 $ 246,273

An analysis of depreciation by function

Operating costs $ 37,340 $ 23,669
Operating expenses 132,024 100,020

$ 169,364 $ 123,689

An analysis of amortization by function

General and administrative expenses $ 8,369 $ 7,206
Research and development expenses 157,722 115,378

$ 166,091 $ 122,584
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d. Employee benefits expense

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Short-term employee benefits $ 3,639,975 $ 3,072,506
Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plan 69,244 62,220
Defined benefit plan 5,765 5,240

__ 75009 __ 67,460
Other employee benefits

Employee welfare 54,933 58,221
Food stipend 36,766 33,662

91,699 91,883

$ 3,706,683 $ 3,231,849

Employee benefits

Recognized in operating costs $ 197,568 $ 180,878
Recognized in operating expenses 3,509,115 3,050,971

$ 3,706,683 $ 3,231,849

e. Employees’ compensation and remuneration o€idire and supervisors for 2017 and 2016

The Corporation accrued employees’ compensationmemdneration of directors and supervisors at the
rates from 8%-19% and no higher than 1.5%, respgtiof net profit before income tax, employees’
compensation, and remuneration of directors ancrsignrs. The employees’ compensation and
remuneration of directors and supervisors for &y ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, which have
been approved by the Corporation’s board of dirsctin March 16, 2018 and March 20, 2017,
respectively, were as follows:

Accrual rate

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Employees’ compensation 9.00% 8.96%
Remuneration of directors and supervisors 0.81% 0.90%
Amount
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Cash Share Cash Share
Dividends Dividends Dividends Dividends
Employees’ compensation $ 670,000 $ - $ 550,000 $ -
Remuneration of directors and
supervisors 60,000 - 55,000 -

If there is a change in the amounts after the dntwasolidated financial statements were authorized
for issue, the differences are recorded as a charthe accounting estimate.
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There is no difference between the actual amouinesnployees’ compensation and remuneration of
directors and supervisors paid and the amountggnéoed in the financial statements for the years
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Information on the employees’ compensation and reration of directors and supervisors resolved by
the Corporation’s board of directors in 2018 and 2@s available on the Market Observation Post
System website of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

f. Gains or losses on foreign currency exchange

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Foreign exchange gains $ 404,688 $ 726,804
Foreign exchange losses (809,261) (619,853)
Net (loss) gain $ (404,573) $ 106,951

24. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Unit: NT$ Per Share

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Basic earnings per share $ 29.23 $ 24.67
Diluted earnings per share $ 28.83 $24.35

The earnings and weighted-average number of ondistaaires outstanding in the computation of earnings
per share were as follows:

Net Profit for the Year

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Earnings used in the computation of basic earnpegshare
Profit for the period attributable to owners of therporation $ 5,760,972 $ 4,866,992
Earnings used in the computation of diluted eamipgy share
Profit for the period attributable to owners of therporation $ 5,760,972 $ 4,866,992
Shares

(In Thousands of Shares)

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Weighted-average number of common shares in cormiguitaf
basic earnings per share 197,074 197,256
Effect of potential dilutive common shares:
Employees’ compensation 2,766 2,595
Weighted-average number of common shares usee in th
computation of dilutive earnings per share 199,840 199,851
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25.

If the Group offered to settle compensation or ls@supaid to employees in cash or shares, the Group
assumed the entire amount of the compensation oudes will be settled in shares, and the resulting
potential shares were included in the weighted ayernumber of shares outstanding used in the
computation of diluted earnings per share, as ffeeteis dilutive. Such dilutive effect of the puttial
shares is included in the computation of dilutedniegs per share until the number of shares to be
distributed to employees is resolved in the follogvwyear.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On August 25, 2016, the Corporation paid $31,78ushAnd to subscribe for the newly issued common
shares for cash of Epostar Electronics (BVI) Caaion at a percentage different from its prior ovghé
percentage. As a result, the Corporation’s owngrglercentage decreased from 60% to 44%. The
Corporation’s less than 50% voting rights had nwgmto govern the financial and operating policxs
Epostar Electronics (BVI) Corporation. Thereforlge t Corporation has lost control over Epostar
Electronics (BVI) Corporation on August 25, 2016.

a. Analysis of assets and liabilities on the datgtrol was lost

August 24, 2016

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 25,297
Trade receivables 1,776
Inventories 1,090
Other 1,125
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3,421
Intangible assets 5,526
Other 442
Current liabilities
Payables (340)
Other payables (18,344)
Other (718)
Net assets disposed of $ 19,275

b. Gain on disposal of subsidiary

For the Eight
Months Ended
August 25, 2016

Consideration received of fair value $ 57,214
Less: Consideration received of book value 11,565
Net assets disposed of 19,275
Non-controlling interests (7,710)
Gain on disposal $ 45,649

c. Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiary

August 25, 2016

Cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of $ 25,297
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26. EQUITY TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERE STS

In order to integrate the equity of Phisontech &teocs (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. for future operational

planning, the Corporation’s board of directors haldneeting on May 11, 2017 and, in that meeting,
resolved to acquire 13% minority shares at NT$754@8r share on June 20, 2017. The acquisition of
these minority shares increased the Corporatidrasehiolding to 100%.

As recorded in the minutes of meetings of the Cafion’s board of directors on August 11, 2016 ard
stipulated in the declaration of Mr. Khein Seng Ptiee Chairman of the Corporation, the operation
management of Everspeed Technology Group (includibyerspeed Technology Limited,
Memoryexchange Corporation (controlled since Oatol2910), Cloud Solution Global Limited
(established on October 25, 2012), and Fast Chalobal Limited (established on May 23, 2013)) and
Twinson Electronic Corporation (100% acquired by @orporation on December 25, 2014 and renamed as
Ostek Corporation) are under substantial controlhgyChairman and should be considered as theedelat
parties of the Corporation. In addition, accorditmgRule No. 1050036477 issued by the FSC, the
Corporation treated the aforementioned companiepasolled entities and included these entitiethim
consolidated financial statements.

The Corporation does not have equity interest irr§yeed Technology Group. Therefore, for the
long-term development and enhancement of the ityegfr the operating structure, the Corporationrdoa
of directors held a meeting on September 21, 201b decided to acquire from the shareholders of
Everspeed Technology Limited, the parent comparigvefispeed Technology Group, 100% equity interest
of Everspeed Technology Group for NT$1 from thershalders of the parent of Everspeed Technology
Group, Everspeed Technology Limited on SeptembeP306. Then the Corporation included Everspeed
Technology Group in the consolidated financial estants as a controlled entity and accounted for the
acquisition as equity transaction.

Phisontech
Electronics Everspeed
(Malaysia) Sdn.  Technology
Bhd. Limited
Cash consideration received (paid) $ (9,651) $ -
The proportionate share of the carrying amounhefrtet assets of
the subsidiary transferred to (from) non-contrgjlinterests 7,626 147,375
Reattribution of other equity to non-controllingerests
Exchange differences on translating foreign openati (661) -
Differences recognized from equity transactions $ (2,686) $ 147,375
Line items adjusted for equity transactions
Capital surplus -ltanges in equity from the consideration receive
excess of the carrying amounts of the subsidianesassets
during disposals or acquisitions $ (2,686) $ 147,375

27. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that tle@will be able to continue as a going concernlevhi
maximizing the return to shareholders through thtamazation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists ofdetits (borrowings offset by cash and cash equitglen
and equity (comprising share capital, capital swgptetained earnings, and other equities).
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28.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposagital requirements.
Key management personnel of the Group review tpdatsstructure on an annual basis. As part «f thi
review, the key management personnel considerdsieaf capital and the risks associated with eda$sc
of capital. Based on recommendations of the kegagement personnel, in order to balance the overall
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amotidtvidends paid to shareholders and the amouneof
debt issued or existing debt redeemed.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
a. Fair value of financial instruments that aremetsured at fair value
The Group’s management considers the carrying ataowgtognized in the consolidated financial
statements for financial assets and financial liigds not carried at fair value to approximateitHair
values or their fair values cannot be reliably roeed.
b. Fair value of financial instruments that are sugad at fair value on a recurring basis

1) Fair value hierarchy

December 31, 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at FVTPL
Domestic quoted shares $ 67,095 $ - $ - $ 67,095
Beneficiary certificates -
open-end funds 1,150,400 - - 1,150,400
Convertible bonds - - 53,722 53,722
$ 1217495 $ - 3 53,722 $ 1,271,217
Available-for-sale financial
assets
Unlisted debt securities - ROC $ - % - $ 434763 $ 434,763
December 31, 2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at FVTPL
Domestic quoted shares $ 8058 $ - $ - $ 80,585
Beneficiary certificates -
open-end funds 1,147,144 - - 1,147,144
$ 1227729 $ - % - $ 1,227,729
Available-for-sale financial
assets
Unlisted debt securities - ROC $ - 3 - $ 372051 $ 372,051

There were no transfers between Levels 1 andiZictrrent and prior periods.
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2) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurermsaniftfinancial instruments

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Financial Assets

at Fair Value
Through Profit ~ Available-for-
or Loss - sale Financial
Convertible Assets - Equity
Bonds Instruments Total
Financial assets
Balance at January 1, 2017 $ - $ 372,051 $ 372,051
Purchase 49,675 - 49,675
Recognized in profit or loss
Other gains and losses 4,047 - 4,047
Recognized in other comprehensive
income
Unrealized gain arising on revaluation
of available-for-sale financial assets - 62,712 62,712
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 53,722 $ 434,763 $ 488,485

For the year ended December 31, 2016

Financial Assets

at Fair Value
Through Profit  Available-for-
or Loss - sale Financial
Convertible Assets - Equity
Bonds Instruments Total
Financial assets
Balance at January 1, 2016 $ - $ 295,950 $ 295,950
Return of capital - (49,500) (49,500)
Recognized in profit or loss
Other gains and losses - - -
Recognized in other comprehensive
income
Unrealized gain arising on revaluation
of available-for-sale financial assets - 125,601 125,601
Balance at December 31, 2017 $ - $ 372,051 $ 372,051

3) Valuation techniques and inputs applied forghepose of Level 3 fair value measurement
a) The fair values of convertible bonds are deteenhiusing Binary Tree Evaluation Model and

option pricing models where the significant unoliabte inputs are historical volatility. As of
December 31, 2017, the historical volatility useabw6.75%.
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b) The fair values of unlisted debt securities -GRO

December 31, 2017

Sensitivity Analysis of

Relation between
Inputs and Fair
Values

When lack of liquidity

percentage increases/
decreases by 10%,
equity of the
Corporation will
increase/decrease by
$43,476 thousand.

Sensitivity Analysis of

Relation between
Inputs and Fair
Values

When lack of liquidity

percentage increases/
decreases by 10%,
equity of the
Corporation will
increase/decrease by
$37,205 thousand.

December 31

Significant Relevance
Financial Valuation Unobservable Quantitative between Inputs
Assets Techniques Inputs Information  and Fair Value
Available-for- Market approach Lack of liquidity 8.92% The higher the
sale shares (price-earnings  discount level of
ratio and liquidity, the
price-to-book lower the
ratio method) estimation of
fair value.
December 31, 2016
Significant Relevance
Financial Valuation Unobservable Quantitative between Inputs
Assets Techniques Inputs Information  and Fair Value
Available-for- Market approach Lack of liquidity 15.69% The higher the
sale shares (price-earnings  discount level of
ratio and liquidity, the
price-to-book lower the
ratio method) estimation of
fair value.
Categories of Financial Instruments
2017
Financial assets
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Held for trading $ 1,271,217
Loans and receivables (Note 1) 20,242,977
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 2) 1,252,390
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost (Note 3) 3,647,245

2016

$ 1,227,729
20,207,076
1,084,941

4,437,451

Note 1: The balances include loans and receivabéssured at amortized cost, which comprise cash and
cash equivalents, debt investments with no actigeket, notes receivable, accounts receivable,
and other receivables

Note 2: The balances include the carrying amounésailable-for-sale financial assets measureastt ¢

Note 3: The balances include financial liabilitregasured at amortized cost, which comprise shori-te
borrowings, notes payable and trade payable
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include igginvestments, trade receivable, trade payabtes a
borrowings. The Group’s financial management depamt provides services to the business unit and
coordinates access to domestic and internatiomanéial markets. The risks include market risk
(including foreign currency risk, interest ratekreand other price risk), credit risk and liquiditgk.

a. Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to theahncial risks of changes in foreign currency rated
interest rates.

1)

2)

Foreign currency risk

The Group had foreign currency sales and purchadesh exposed the Group to foreign currency
risk. To avoid the decrease in foreign currensetssand adverse fluctuations of future cash flows
resulting from changes in foreign currency exchangges, the Group used foreign currency
borrowings to hedge risks of foreign currency exgearates. The gain or loss caused by changes
in foreign currency exchange rates will be offsgpbofit or loss from the hedge. As a result, the
market risk is immaterial.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign curgedenominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities (including those eliminated on consalihn) and of the derivatives exposed to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting pericelset out in Note 33.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group was mainly exposed to the U.S. dollar.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity a 6% increase and decrease in the New
Taiwan dollar (the functional currency) against tieéevant foreign currencies. The sensitivity

rate used when reporting foreign currency risk rimdly to key management personnel and

represents management’s assessment of the reaspoabible change in foreign exchange rates is
6%. The sensitivity analysis included only outsiag foreign currency denominated monetary

items and adjusts its translation at the end ofrdporting period for a 6% change in foreign

currency rates. A positive number below indicaiedecrease in pre-tax profit and other equity
associated with the New Taiwan dollar strengthé¥sa@ainst the relevant currency. For a 6%
weakening of the New Taiwan dollar against thevahé currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on pre-tax profit and other eqaitg the balances below would be negative.

Impact of USD
For the Year Ended December 31
2017 2016

Profit or loss $ 377,822 $ 383,610
Interest rate risk

The Group was exposed to interest rate risk becantiges in the Group borrowed funds at both
fixed and floating interest rates.
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The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assatsl financial liabilities with exposure to
interest rates at the end of the reporting perietevas follows:

December 31

2017 2016
Fair value interest rate risk
Financial assets $ 4584,471 $ 3,307,008
Cash flow interest rate risk
Financial assets 9,638,332 11,709,953
Financial liabilities - 580,500

Sensitivity analysis

If interest rates had been 1 basis point higheradinother variables were held constant, the Graup’
pre-tax profit for the years ended December 31,7281d 2016 would increase by $964 thousand
and $1,113 thousand, respectively.

3) Other price risk

The Group was exposed to equity price risks thratgyinvestments in international and domestic
quoted stocks and beneficial certificates.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below was determined basethe exposure to equity price risks at the end
of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 1% higher/lower, prepaafit for the years ended December 31, 2017
and 2016 would have increased/decreased by $1thdu8and and $12,277 thousand, respectively.
The pre-tax other comprehensive income for thesyeaded December 31, 2017 and 2016 would
increase/decrease by $4,348 thousand and $3,7@4athd, respectively, as a result of the changes
in fair value of held-for-sale investments.

b. Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterpavty default on its contractual obligations resngiin a
financial loss to the Group. As at the end of ifygorting period, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk, which would cause a financial lossthe Group due to a failure of counterparties to
discharge an obligation and financial guaranteewiged by the Group, comes from the carrying
amounts of the respective recognized financialtassestated in the consolidated balance sheets.

The Group adopted a policy of only dealing withditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient
collateral, where appropriate, as a means of ntitigahe risk of financial loss from defaults. The
Group only transacts with entities that are ratesl équivalent of investment grade and above. The
Group uses other publicly available financial imhation and its own trading records to rate its majo
customers. The Group’s exposure to such risk dred dredit ratings of its counterparties are
continually monitored, and the aggregate valugasidactions was concluded to be spread out amongst
approved counterparties. Ongoing credit evaluatame performed on the financial condition of trade
receivables.

The targets of the aforementioned evaluation a@nfial assets that could potentially be influenogd
the Group’s counterparties defaulting on their carttial obligations and contracts with positive fai
values as of the balance sheet date. The custoaietee Group are financial institutions or
manufacturers with good credit ratings; and thiustd is no expected material credit risk.
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29.

c. Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by monitoring andintaining a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate to finance the Group’s operatinodsmatigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. In addition, management monitors the uiiiian of bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants. The Group relies on bankdwairrgs as a significant source of liquidity. As of
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Group had availatlélized short-term bank loan facilities of
$6,820,500 thousand and $2,907,500 thousand, tesggc

Liquidity and interest risk rate table for non-dettive financial liabilities

The following tables detail the Group’s remainirgntractual maturity for its non-derivative finarcia
liabilities with agreed upon repayment periods. e Tiables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilitiesorn the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.

December 31, 2017

On Demand
or Less Than 3 Months to More than
1 Month 1-3 Months 1 Year 1-5 Years 5 Years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing $ 2,641,026 $ 2,875361 $ 2,960,437 $ -3 -
December 31, 2016
On Demand
or Less Than 3 Months to More than
1 Month 1-3 Months 1 Year 1-5 Years 5 Years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-interest bearing $ 2,225,637 $ 2,478,340 $ 3,037,846 $ - $ -
Variable interest rate instruments 354,750 225,750 - - -
$ 2,580,387 $ 2,704,090 $ 3,037,846 $ - $ -

Information on Transfers of Financial Assets

Refer to Note 9 for more information relating te Broup’s factored trade receivables.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED-PARTIES

Balances and transactions between the Corporatiah ies subsidiaries have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this notgesides information disclosed elsewhere in therothe
notes, details of transactions between the Grodm#rer related parties are disclosed below.

a. Related-party and its relationship

Related Party Relationship
Toshiba International Procurement Hong Kong, Ltd. Other related parties
Toshiba Memory America, Inc. Other related parties
Toshiba Singapore Pte. Ltd. Other related parties
Toshiba Corporation, Japan Other related parties
Toshiba Client Solutions ANZ Pty Limited Otherateld parties
(Continued)

-57 -



Related Party

Relationship

Toshiba (Australia) Pty Limited

Toshiba Electronics (China) Co., Ltd.

Toshiba America Electronic Components, Inc.
Toshiba Memory Corporation

Toshiba Electronics Asia (Singapore) Pte., Ltd.
Toshiba Memory Taiwan Corporation

Toshiba Electronic Components Taiwan Corporation
Orient Semiconductor Electronics Ltd.
Dawning Leading Technology Inc.

Kingston Solutions Inc.

PMS Technology Corporation

Microtops Design Corporation

Epostar Electronics Corporation

Operating revenue

Related-party categories

Associates
Other related parties (Note 1)

Other related et
Other radgparties
Otktated parties
Other related parties
heDtrelated parties
Other relatedips
theOrelated parties
Other ralgparties
Other relatedipart
Associates
Associates
Associates
Associates
(Concluded)

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016

$ 22,380 $ 33,281
1,855,850 2,070,971

$ 1878230 $ 2,104,252

The terms of sales to related parties were sirtoléinose for third parties.

Operating costs

1) Purchase of goods

Related-party categories

Associates
Other related parties
Toshiba Memory Taiwan Corporation

Toshiba Electronic Components Taiwan Corporation

Others (Note 1)
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For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016

$ 293,119 $ 318,003

3,210,897 -
12,335,671 18,830,260
3,735,307 2,681,533

$ 19,574,994 $ 21,829,796



2) Processing costs

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Related-party categories
Associates $ 1,330 $ 13
Other related parties (Note 2) 1,387,601 3,039,291

$ 1,388,931 $ 3,039,304
The terms of operating costs from related partiesevgimilar to those for third parties.
d. Receivables from related parties

December 31

2017 2016
Related-party categories
Associates $ 465 $ 1,039
Other related parties (Note 1) 317,686 357,211

$ 318,151 $ 358,250
The outstanding trade receivables from relatedigsarire unsecured. No bad debt expense was
recognized for the allowance for impaired tradeenegbles with respect to the amounts owed by relate
parties.

e. Payables to related parties

December 31

2017 2016
Related-party categories
Associates $ 24959 $ 79,059
Other related parties
Toshiba Electronic Components Taiwan Corporation 17 1,697,597
Toshiba Memory Taiwan Corporation 2,105,363 -
Others (Note 1) 430,199 342,735

$ 2560538 $ 2,119,391
The outstanding trade payables from related paatiesinsecured.

Note 1. Other related parties are mainly corporagmbers of the Corporation’s board of directors
and their subsidiaries.

Note 2: The Corporation is the member of the rela@ty’s board of directors.
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f. Compensation of key management personnel

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Short-term employee benefits $ 287412 $ 262,337
Post-employment benefits 1,492 1,436
Other employee benefits 4,873 6,409

$ 293,777 $ 270,182

The remuneration of directors and key executives dedermined by the remuneration committee based
on the performance of individuals and market trends

30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
a. The Group as lessee
The Group’s lease contracts for a factory and &éineoéxpire on September 30, 2022.

Future minimum lease payments under the above tipgtaases are as follows:

December 31

2017 2016
Not later than 1 year $ 17,644 $ 11,457
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 34,538 892

52,182 $ 12,349

b. The Group as lessor

Operating leases relate to the property are ownedhé Group, and such leases will expire on
December 31, 2018.

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016Gtbap recognized a guarantee on trade
receivables of $206 thousand and $256 thousanugcteely.

The future minimum lease payments of non-cancelapkrating leases were as follows:

December 31

2017 2016
Not later than 1 year $ 2,087 $ 2,488

31. ASSETS PLEDGED AS COLLATERAL OR FOR SECURITY

The following assets were provided as collateratte tariff of imported raw materials:

December 31

2017 2016
Refundable deposits for the Customs Duty Bureartificates of
deposit (debt investments with no active market) $ 80,534 $ 57,439
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32. SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGN IZED COMMITMENTS

In addition to those disclosed in other notes, iigaint commitments and contingencies of the Grasf
December 31, 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

Significant Commitments

December 31

2017 2016
Unused letters of credit $ 2,046,500 $ 2,020,000

33. SIGNIFICANT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES DENOMINATED IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES
The Group entities’ monetary financial assets aatoilities denominated in foreign currencies aggted
by the foreign currencies other than functionarencies and the related exchange rates betweeigriore
currencies and respective functional currenciegwasrfollows:

In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars and Foreign Curencies

December 31, 2017

Foreign New Taiwan
Currencies Exchange Rates Dollars
Financial assets
Monetary
UsD $ 308,126 29.7600 $ 9,169,830
CNY 59,203 4.5650 270,260
Financial liabilities
Monetary
uUsD 96,532 29.7600 2,872,798
December 31, 2016
Foreign New Taiwan
Currencies Exchange Rates Dollars
Financial assets
Monetary
usD $ 308,979 32.250 $ 9,964,583
CNY 46,020 4.617 212,475
Financial liabilities
Monetary
UsD 110,731 32.250 3,571,076

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 20X8izé@ and unrealized) net foreign exchange gains
were $404,573thousand and $106,951 thousand, teghgc It is impractical to disclose net foreign
exchange gains (losses) by each significant foreigmency due to the variety of the foreign cursenc
transactions and functional currencies of the Grenigiies.
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34. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENT

The Corporation has been under statutory inveshigaince August 5, 2016 for an alleged violatiérhe
Securities and Exchange Act, and the investigati@s conducted by the Taiwan Hsinchu District
Prosecutorial Office and concluded on August 311,720 According to the press release announcement
from the Taiwan Hsinchu District Prosecutorial ©ffion September 1, 2017, under the Securities and
Exchange Act and related provisions in the Crimi@alde, the prosecutor charged the chairman of the
Corporation, Mr. Khein Seng Pua, and others cultiigan either deferred prosecution or the droppifig
the claim for further prosecution. The Taiwan Hhin District Prosecutorial Office ex officio semet
ruling to the Taiwan High Prosecutors Office focarsideration. As of November 18, 2017, in redgard
the partial revocation and partial dismissal chdrgeghe Taiwan High Court Prosecutorial Office aigai

the chairman of the Corporation, Mr. Khein Seng,Runa others, the case is under re-investigatiua tlae
financial position and operation of the Corporai®not affected in respect of this matter.

35. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES
a. Information about significant transactions anihbestees:
1) Financing provided to others. (None)

2) Endorsement/guarantee provided. (None)

3) Marketable securities held (excluding investtadn subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures).
(Table 1)

4) Marketable securities acquired and disposeat 0bsts or prices of at least NT$300 million 0?20
of the paid-in capital. (None)

5) Acquisition of individual real estate at costsat least NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in
capital. (Table 2)

6) Disposal of individual real estate at priceabfeast NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in dapi
(None)

7) Total purchases from or sales to related madimounting to at least NT$100 million or 20% af th
paid-in capital. (Table 3)

8) Receivables from related parties amounting ttdeast NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in
capital. (Table 4)

9) Trading in derivative instruments. (None)
10) Other: Intercompany relationships and sigaifidntercompany transactions. (Table 5)
11) Information of investees. (Table 6)
c. Information on investments in mainland China:
1) Information on any investee company in mainl&@idna, showing the name, principal business
activities, paid-in capital, method of investmemward and outward remittance of funds,
ownership percentage, net income of investeessimant income or loss, carrying amount of the

investment at the end of the period, repatriatmnisivestment income, and limit on the amount of
investments in the mainland China area. (Table 7)
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2) Any of the following significant transactions tiviinvestee companies in mainland China, either
directly or indirectly through a third party, arftetr prices, payment terms, and unrealized gains or
losses. (Table 8)

a) The amount and percentage of purchases andldweck and percentage of the related payables
at the end of the period.

b) The amount and percentage of sales and thedeatard percentage of the related receivables at
the end of the period.

c) The amount of property transactions and the atnofuthe resultant gains or losses.

d) The balance of negotiable instrument endorsesnguiarantees or pledges of collateral at the
end of the period and their purposes.

e) The highest balance, the end of period balaheeinterest rate range, and total current period
interest with respect to financing of funds.

f) Other transactions that have a material effectttee profit or loss for the period or on the
financial position, such as the rendering or receiservices.

36. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the chief operating decisimaker for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on fihe tf goods or services delivered or provided.
Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments ideldepartments that design and sell flash memory
controllers and make investments.

a. Segment revenue and results

The following was an analysis of the Group’s reverand results from continuing operations by
reportable segments:

Segment Revenue Segment Profits (Loss)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31 December 31
2017 2016 2017 2016

Department that designs and

sells flash memory

controllers $ 41,864,759 $ 43,782,512 $ 6,732,575 $ 4,842,901
Investment department (883) (253)

Total operating segments $ 41,864,759 $ 43,782,512 6,731,692 4,842,648

Other gains and losses (571,886) 16,158
Share of gains of associates 442,368 459,309
Other income 120,677 160,864
Finance costs (4,981) (2,053)
Profit before tax $ 6,717,870 $ 5,476,926

Segment revenue reported above was generated kimmmal customers. There were no intersegment
sales for the years of 2017 and 2016.
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Segment profit represented the profit before taxexh by each segment without the share of gains or
loss of associates, rental income, interest incaya@s or losses on disposal of property, plant and
equipment, gains or losses on sales of investmerthiange gains or losses, valuation gains ordosse
on financial instruments, financial costs and inedax expense.

Segment assets and liabilities

The Group does not report segment assets anditlegbibr other segment information to the chief
operating decision maker. Therefore, no informmaisodisclosed here.

Revenue from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revemfieontinuing operations from its major products
and services:

For the Year Ended December 31

2017 2016
Sales of Nand flash controller and application pats etc. $ 41,690,713 $ 43,682,283
Services income 174,046 100,229

$ 41,864,759 $ 43,782,512
Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations fexternal customers by location of operations and
information about its non-current assets by locatibassets are detailed below.

Revenue from External

Customers Non-Current Assets
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31 December 31
2017 2016 2017 2016
Asia $ 23,853,418 $ 22,372,435 $ 3,044,791 $ 2,660,073
America 13,514,981 15,741,311 - -
Europe 4,126,140 5,348,709 - -
Australia 368,827 318,926 - -
Other 1,393 1,131 - -

41,864,759 $ 43,782,512 $ 3,044,791 $ 2,660,073

Revenue was categorized depending on clients’itotsat
Information about major customers

Included in revenue arising from selling of NandsHi, controller and application products of
$41,690,713 thousand and $43,682,283 thousand 'Y 2d 2016, respectively, is revenue of
approximately $9,217,685 thousand and $7,658,9@8sdnd which arose from sales to the Group’s
largest customer. No other single customer camtiith 10% or more to the Group’s revenue for both
2017 and 2016.
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PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

MARKETABLE SECURITIES HELD (EXCLUDING INVESTMENTS |

DECEMBER 31, 2017

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless State@therwise)

N SUBSIDIARIES)

TABLE 1

December 31, 2017
Holding Company Name Marketable ISecuntl,\els tTyf e/Name and Rslaltéc_mstélp with the Financial Statement Account Shares or Units| Carrying Percentage of K | Note
ssuer (Note 1) olding Company (In Thousands) Amount Ownership (%) Market Value
(Note 2)
Phison Electronics Corp. |__Beneficiary certificates

Mega Diamond Money Market Fund - Financial asaefair value through profit or loss - current 387 $ 103,558 - $ 103,558| Note 3
FSITC Taiwan Money Market Fund - Financial asset®ir value through profit or loss - current 180 93,349 - 93,349| Note 3
UPAMC James Bond Money Market Fund - Financiab&sat fair value through profit or loss - current 12,254 203,599 - 203,599 Note 3
Union Money Market Fund - Financial assets atJalue through profit or loss - current 6,995 91,837 - 91,837 | Note 3
Franklin Templeton SinoAm Money Market - Financial assets at fair value through profitoss - current 14,847 152,526 - 152,526 teNBo

Fund
Yuanta De-Li Money Market Fund - Financial assgtfair value through profit or loss - current 130 50,738 - 50,738 | Note 3
Jih Sun Money Market Fund - Financial assetsiavédue through profit or loss - current 13,767 202,746 - 202,746 | Note 3
Taishin Ta-Chong Market Fund - Financial assefaiavalue through profit or loss - current 5 50,757 - 50,757 | Note 3
Allianz Global Investors Taiwan Mong - Financial assets at fair value through profit @s- curren 8,11¢ 101,12¢ - 101,12¢ |Note &

Market Fund
Convertible bonds
Ubitus Inc. Financial assets at fair value through profitassl - current - 53,722 - 53,722 Note 11
Common shares
Orient Semiconductor Electronics, Ltd. - Finaneisdets at fair value through profit or loss - entr 7,100 67,095 0.88 67,093 Note 4
Aptos Technology Inc. - Financial assets measateost - non-current 1,059 e 1.86 10,73@lote 10
Viva Baseball Co., Ltd. - Financial assets meabateost - non-current Note 7 4 8.33 25Mote 5
JAFCO Asia Technology Fund IV L.P. - Financialeissneasured at cost - non-current 1,000 08,72 0.50 8,720 | Note 5
AppWorks Fund | Co., Ltd. - Financial assets mesdat cost - non-current 3,000 24,471 18.75 25,770 | Note 5
Zillians Inc. - Financial assets measured at cost - non-current 440 - 17.25 - | Note9
Adam Elements International Co., Ltd. - Finaneisdets measured at cost - non-current 1,700 13,373 19.00 15,639 | Note 5
JAFCO Asia Technology Fund VI L.P. - Financialetssmeasured at cost - non-current 900 17,293 0.67 17,293 | Note 5
THLight Co., Ltd. - Financial assets measuredoat € non-current 6,388 - 17.94 1,158 NMNote
UD INFO Corp. - Financial assets measured at cost - non-current 570 5,569 18.51 9,248| Note 5
Appworks Fund Il Co., Ltd. - Financial assets nueed at cost - non-current 15,000 138,812 1m1. 138,812 | Note 5
GeoThings, Inc. - Financial assets measured at cost - non-current 150 - 6.70 850 | Note 5
Ironyun Incorporated (preference shares) - Firdragisets measured at cost - non-current 5,000 - 5.92 1,594 | Note 5
Vescir Ltd. - Financial assets measured at cost - non-current 63 - 4.57 266 | Note 5
Innorich Venture Capital Corp. - Financial asse&asured at cost - non-current 3,000 27,945 615 27,945 | Note 5
Dawning Leading Technology Inc. - Financial assetssured at cost - non-current 10,335 53,6770 2.82 54,277 | Note 5
CAL-COMP INDUSTRIA DE - Financial assets measured at  nor-curren 11,96¢ 58,25: 17.1¢ 79,31¢ |Note £

SEMICONDUCTORES S.A.
Gomore Inc. - Financial assets measured at cost - non-current 16,075 6,770 13.00 4,388/ Note 5

(Continued)
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December 31, 2017
Holding Company Name Marketable Securities Type/Name and Relat|(_)nsh|p with the Financial Statement Account Shares or Units| Carrying Percentage of Note
Issuer (Note 1) Holding Company Amount - Market Value
(In Thousands) Ownership (%)
(Note 2)
Patriot Memory Asia Headquarter - Financial assetasured at cost - non-current 580 $ 7,540 33 4. $ 7,532 | Note 5
Taishan Buffalo Investment Co., Ltd. - Financisdets measured at cost - non-current 25,000 5,00Q 1.08 25,055 | Note 5
Apacer Technology Inc. - Available-for-sale fins@@ssets - non-current 10,050 434,763 9.96 434,763 | Note 6
Private equity fund
Fuh Hwa Smart Energy Fund Financial assets medsircost - non-current 6,000 60,000 3.81 58,078 | Note 3
Lian Xu Dong Investment|_ Beneficiary certificates
Corporation FSITC Taiwan Money Market Fund - Ficial assets at fair value through profit or lossirrent 1,986 30,203 - 30,203 Note 3
Allianz Global Investors Taiwan Money - Financial assets at fair value through profitoss - current 2,424 30,194 - 30,194 Nbote
Market Fund
Common shares
United Power Research Technology Corp. - Finarasiséts measured at cost - non-current 5,6[L6 45,702 16.12 63,027 | Note 5
Fresco Logic, Inc. (preference shares) - Finarasaéts measured at cost - non-current 1,250 - 2.23 4,154 | Note 5
Translink Capital Partners I, L.P. - Financiabats measured at cost - non-current 1,245 4488 1.18 38,376 | Note 5
Translink Capital Partners IV L.P - Financial dsseeasured at cost - non-current 100 3,034 920 2,660 | Note 5
Ligid, Inc. (preference shares) - Financial assetasured at cost - non-current 2,111 230,118  10.92 19,697 | Note 5
Weltronics Corp., Ltd. - Financial assets measatezbst - non-current 700 - 19.44 (1,27®ote 5
UMBO CV Inc. (preference shares) - Financial assstasured at cost - non-current 1,626 16,860 3.58 4,720 | Note 5
Omni Media International Incorporation Finan@abets measured at cost - non-current 1,704 0,75@ 13.84 20,756 | Note 5
RENIAC, INC. (preference shares) - Financial assstasured at cost - non-current 30p 15,300 46 3 14 | Note 5
Emtops Electronics Beneficiary certificates
Corporation Allianz Global Investors Taiwan Money - Financial assets at fair value through profitoss - current 815 10,148 - 10,14 Note 3
Market Fund
Franklin Templeton SinoAm Money Market - Financial assets at fair value through profitoss - current 988 10,155 - 10,155 Note 3
Fund
Phisontech Electronics Beneficiary certificates
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. United Cash Fund - Finanasalets at fair value through profit or loss - eotr 2,731 19,461 - 19,461 Note 3
Everspeed Technology Common shares
Limited Zillians Inc. - Financial assets measured at - nor-curren 50C - 19.61 - [Note9
Cloud Solution Global Common shares
Limited My Digital Discount, Inc. - Financial a&ts measured at cost - non-current - - 19.00 4,066 | Note 5
Note 1: The marketable securities listed refeh#otypes of financial instruments applying Inteioral Accounting Standard 39 “Financial InstrumeRéognition and Measurement”.
Note 2: The carrying amount is either the fair eatu the original cost net accumulated impairmess.|
Note 3: The calculation of the market value wastam the net asset value as of December 31, 2017.
Note 4: The calculation of the market value waetam the closing price as of December 31, 2017.
(Continued)
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Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

Note 8:

Note 9:

Note 10:

Note 11:

The calculation of the net asset value eaed on the investee’s unaudited financial statesvaes of December 31, 2017.
Refer to Note 28(b)-3 for market value miation.

The Company is not limited by shares.

The Group held marketable securities thdtriot been guaranteed, pledged or mortgaged lagecal or restricted by other commitments.

The Company liquidation was approved bybiberd of directors on December 31, 2016.
The calculation of the net asset value veagd on the investee’s reviewed financial statésres of June 30, 2017.

The calculation of the market value wasebaon an expert assessment report as of Dece@h20 7.
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TABLE 2

PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

ACQUISITION OF INDIVIDUAL REAL ESTATE AT COSTS OF A T LEAST NT$300 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITA L
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Information on Previous Title Transfer If Counterparty Is A
Transaction Payment Counterparty and . . Related Party Pricing Purpose of
Buyer Property Event Date Amount Status Purpose Relationship Property ' ’ Transaction Reference | Acquisition Other Terms
Relationship
Owner Date Amount
Phison ElectronigZhunan third 2016.1.22 $ 780,000 | Fully paid Build on its land (main - - - - $ - - Operating -
Corp. phase factory | (Note) contractor: Ruente

Engineering &
Construction Co.,
Ltd.)

Note:

The commissioned construction project wadbioiding on the counterparty’s land and was apgdoby the Corporation’s board of directors.

Thestauction will be transferred to the Corporatiopfsperty, plant and equipment after
the acceptance of work is completed.
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PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

TOTAL PURCHASES FROM OR SALES TO RELATED PARTIES AM OUNTING TO AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PA ID-IN CAPITAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless State@therwise)

TABLE 3

Transaction Details Abnormal Transaction Notes/Accounts
. . Payable or Receivable
Company Name Related Party Nature of Relationship Purchase/ % of Pa n % of Note
Amount 0 Payment Terms Unit Price ymen Ending Balance 00
Sale Total Terms Total
Phison Electronics Corp|Toshiba Electronic Components |Sub-subsidiary of parent company of the Purchase $ 12,335,671 43 |Net 30 days after monthly closing None Noneg $ a7) - -
Taiwan Corporation Corporation’s legal entity board of
directors
Toshiba America Electronic Subsidiary of parent company of the Purchase 2,795,015 10 |[Net 30 days after receipt date None None - - -
Components, Inc. Corporation’s legal entity board of
directors
Kingston Solutions Inc. Equity-method investeessdiary Purchase 293,119 1 |Net 30 days after monthly closing None None 4,989) Q) -
Toshiba Memory America, Inc. Subsidiary of paresmpany of the Purchase 921,246 3 [Net 30 days after receipt date Nong Noné (B85 9) -
Corporation’s legal entity board of
directors
Toshiba Memory Taiwa Suk-subsidiary of parent company of t  |Purchas 3,210,89 11 |Net 30 days after monthly closi None None (2,105,36) | (58) -
Corporation Corporation’s legal entity board of
directors
Orient Semiconductor Electronics|The Corporation is its director Processing 1,043,145 3 |Net 15 days after monthly closing None None 5,984) ) -
Ltd. cost
Dawning Leading Technology Inc{ The Corporatioitsgirector Processing 344,456 1 |Net 45 days after monthly closing None None 0,189) 1) -
cost
Toshiba Corporation Parent company of the Corporation’s leg&ale (485,013) (1) |Net 60 days after monthly closing None None - - -
(“Toshiba-JP-SS”) entity board of directors
Toshiba International ProcuremeniSubsidiary of parent company of the Sale (314,516) (1) |[Net 60 days after monthly closing None None 144,108 2 -
Hong Kong Ltd. Corporation’s legal entity board of
(“Toshiba-TIPH") directors
Toshiba Memory Corporation The Corporation’s legyatity board of Sale (876,187) (2) |Net 60 days after monthly closing None None 79,556 1 -
directors
Dawning Leading Technology Inc{ The Corporationisglirector Sale (172,914) - |Net 30 days after monthly closing None| None| ,888 2 -
Hefei Core Storage Electronic Sub-subsidiary Sale (518,402) (1) |Net 30 days after monthly closing None None 17,135 - -
Limited
Hefei Core Storage Power Flash (HK) Limited Fellow subsidiary Sale (272,041), (41) |Net 30 days after monthly closing None None - - -
Electronic Limited
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TABLE 4

PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES AMOUNTING TO AT LE AST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL
DECEMBER 31, 2017
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

_ ‘ ‘ Overdue R:crzi(\)/lg:jt in Allowa_mce for
Company Name Related Party Relationship Ending Balace| Turnover Rate Amount Action Taken Subsequent Impﬁggnsent
Period (Note)
Phison Electronics Corp. Toshiba International Brement |Subsidiary of parent company of the Corporatioagal entity $ 144,108 3.6 $ - - $ 143,111 $
Hong Kong Ltd. board of directors

Note: As of March 1, 2018.
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PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INTERCOMPANY RELATIONSHIPS AND SIGNIFICANT INTERCOM PANY TRANSACTIONS

DECEMBER 31, 2017

TABLE 5

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless State@therwise)
Transaction Details Percentage of
Transaction
Number Company Name Counterparty Flow O.f ) Amou_nt 0
Transaction Account Amount Transaction Terms Consolidated
Operating Revenue|
or Total Assets (%)

0 Phison Electronics Corp. Hefei Core Storage Ededt Limited 1 Sales revenue $ 518,402 Baserkgular terms 1
Hefei Core Storage Electronic Limited 1 Accourgseivable 17,135 Based on regular terms -
Hefei Core Storage Electronic Limited 1 Reseanth development expenses 84,039 Based on reguizs -
Hefei Core Storage Electronic Limited 1 Othergtalgs 14,302 Based on regular terms -
Ostek Corporatic 1 Purchases 2,38¢ Based on regular teri -
Ostek Corporation 1 Accounts payable 5,188| seBaon regular terms -
Ostek Corporation 1 Manufacturing expenses 5685, Based on regular terms -
Ostek Corporatic 1 Other payable 1,091 Based on regular teri -
Phison Electronics Taiwan Corp. 1 Sales revenue 12,995 Based on regular terms -
Phison Electronics Japan Corp. 1 Sales expense 8,157 Based on regular terms -
Phison Electronics Japan Corp. 1 Other payables 2,225 Based on regular terms -
Emtops Electronics Corp. 1 Purchases 19,152 sedBan regular terms -
Phisontech Electronics (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhdl. 1 eSatvenue 1,386 Based on regular terms -
Phisontech Electronics (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhdl. 1 cRases 14,453 Based on regular terms -

1 Hefei Core Storage Electronic LimiteBower Flash (HK) Limited 2 Sales revenue 272,041|Based on regular terms 1

Note:

a. Parent company to subsidiary: 1.
b. Between subsidiaries: 2.

The following numerals represent the corragpgy directional flow of transactions.
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PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INFORMATION OF INVESTEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2017

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

TABLE 6

Investment Amount

Balance as of December 31, 2017

Net (Loss)
Investor Investee Location Main Businesses and Prodts| December 31| December 31 Number of Pg:;ﬁg:zg? 0 Carrying |Income of the (ngzz)s tlrr?ceonr:]e Note
2017 2016 Shares (%) p Amount Investee
Phison Electronics Corp.| Kingston Solutions Inc. iWEa Embedded flash productand| $ 106,050 $ 106,050/ 10,605,000 32.91 $ 1,623,790 $ 1,441,523 $ 474,405|Equity-method
market development investee
Emtops Electronics Taiwan Sale of flash memory coollers| 95,000 95,000 9,500,000 100.00 70,108 (3,843 (3,843)Subsidiary
Corporation and peripheral system
applications
Lian Xu Dong Investment  |Taiwan Investment 650,000 400,000, 65,000,000 100.00 614,104 (8,914 (8,914)Subsidiary
Corporation
Flexmedia Electronics Taiwan R&D, sales and production off 8,077 8,077 482,142 21.43 - (20,900 (1,063)Equity-method
Corporation high-tech multimedia desig investee
Microtops Design CorporatiofT aiwan Research and design of flash 22,638 22,638 2,263,800 49.00 21,563 (5,405 (2,648)Equity-method
memory controllers and investee
related products
Phison Electronics Japan Cddapan Sales and service office 28,982 28,982 900 100.00 3,969 (5,577 (5,577)Subsidiary
Global Flash Limited Samoa Investment and trade 665,823 635,696/ 21,000,000 100.00 626,167 15,890 15,890 [Subsidiary
Phisontech Electronics Malaysia Design, production and sale of 91,422 81,771| 10,000,000 100.00 62,707 5,686 5,368 |Subsidiary
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. flash memory controllers and
peripheral system
applications
Epostar Electronics (BVI)  |British Virgin Islandginvestment 133,988 133,988| 10,600,000 37.82 47,741 (98,817 (42,745)Equity-method
Corporation investee
Power Flash (Samoa) Limiteffamoa Investment and trade 105,440 105,440 3,200,000 100.00 97,848 518 518 |Subsidiary
Everspeed Technology Limitgshmoa Trade of electronic components - - 1,000,000 100.00 139,985 (15,318 (15,318)Subsidiary
Lian Xu Dong Investmen{Ostek Corporation Taiwan Manufacture and trade of 9,000 9,000 900,000 100.00 53,546 (8,482 - |Sub-subsidiary
Corporation electronic components
PMS Technology Corporatiofiraiwan Research and design of flash 2,000 2,000 200,000 33.33 16,617 43,260 - |Equity-method
memory controllers and investee
related products
Phisontech Electronics |Phisontech Electronics Taiw#haiwan Design of ASIC and R&D, 10,000 10,000 1,000,000 100.00 38,755 6,948 - |Sub-subsidiary
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Corp. manufacture, and sale of
ASIC for IP and technical
support service
Global Flash Limited Core Storage Electronic  |Samoa Investment and trade 576,229 576,229 18,050,000 100.00 563,172 22,336 - |Sub-subsidiary

(Samoa) Limited
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Investment Amount Balance as of December 31, 2017
Percentage o Net (Loss) Investment
Investor Investee Location Main Businesses and Prodts| December 31| December 31{ Number of Ownersgi Carrying |Income of the (Loss) Incom Note
2017 2016 Shares %) P Amount Investee
Power Flash (Samoa) |Power Flash (HK) Limited Hong Kong Trade of elenimproducts $ 98,754 $ 98,754 3,000,000/ 100.00 $ 91,947 $ 1,035| $ - |Sub-subsidiary
Limited
Everspeed Technology |Memoryexchange Corporatigaiwan Design and sale of flash 391,986 391,986/ 40,950,000 100.00 7,364 (6,154 - |Sub-subsidiary
Limited memory related products
Fast Choice Global Limited | British Virgin Islandsade of electronic components 1,482 1,482 50,000 100.00 2,637 (40) - |Sub-subsidiary
Cloud Solution Global LimitefBritish Virgin IslandsTrade of electronic components 186,963 186,963 5,950,440 100.00 11,277 (8,745 - |Sub-subsidiary
Cloud Solution Global  |Asadhya Enterprises Private|India Trade of electronic products 611 611 122,255 49.00 - (14) - |Equity-method
Limited Limited investee
(Concluded)
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PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INFORMATION ON INVESTMENTS IN MAINLAND CHINA
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

TABLE 7

(In Thousands)

$ 629,876
(US$ 19,790)

(US$ 19,790)

Note 1:

Note 2:  Amount was recognized based on auditedfiadstatements.
Note 3: The limit of investments in mainland Chimdyich is based on Regulations Governing the Apglro¥ Investments on Technical Corporation in Maimd China, is 60% of the Group’s net asset valueciwis $26,058,315 x 60% =

$15,634,989.
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Indirectly invested in a China-based conmyganough a third-region company, Global Flash ltédij and its subsidiaries.

Accumulated Investment Flows Accumulated _ Accumulated
Outflow of Outflow of Carrying Inward
Total Amount | Method of Investment Investment | Percentage off Investment Amount Remittance of
Investee Company Main Businesses and Producty  of Paid-in  |Investment from Taiwan as Outflow Inflow from Taiwan Ownership | (Loss) Income as of Earnings as of
Capital (Note 1) as of (%) (Note 2) December 31, 9
of January 1, December 31,
5017 December 31, 2017 2017
2017
Phisontech (Shenzhen) Limited Design, R&D, impod axport $ 53,096 2 $ 23,006 $ 30,090 $ $ 53,096 100.00 $  (7,242) $ 23,805 $
of storage devices and
electronics
Hefei Core Storage Electronic Design, R&D, production and saje 576,780 2 576,780 - 576,78 100.00 22,460 562,104 -
Limited of integrated circuits, systems
and electronics hardware and
software and rendering of
related services
Acchl;lr;ﬁ:gtneddcl:rr\]\i/ﬁzt;nsegfts N Jinvestment Amount_Aqthorized by Limit on Investments
December 31, 2017 Investment Commission, MOEA (Note 3)
$ 629,876 $ 15,634,989




TABLE 8

PHISON ELECTRONICS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS WITH INVESTEE COMPANIES IN  MAINLAND CHINA, EITHER DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY THRO  UGH A THIRD PARTY, AND THEIR PRICES, PAYMENT TERMS, AND
UNREALIZED GAINS OR LOSSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Transaction Details Abnormal Transaction Notes/ A(E;(;ur;t;er\;ecelvab
Buyer Related Party Relationship Purchase/ % of Y % of Note
Amount 0 Payment Terms Unit Price | Payment Terms | Ending Balance 0
Sale Total Total
Phison Electronics Corp. Hefei Core Storage El@atro |Sub-subsidiary Sale $ 518,402 1 Net 30 days afterthly closing None None $ 17,135 - -
Limited
Hefei Core Storage Electroni®ower Flash (HK) Limited Fellow subsidiarie Sale 272,041 41 Net 30 days after monthly closing None None - - -
Limited
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